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1. Basic Knowledge Part
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la. Overview

Recommended Viewing.

JWPce: a Japanese Word Processing Program
Character Set: EUC-JP

Display and ASCII Font: MS Mincho

Font Size: 16 pixels

Line Width: Fixed, Size 37

A year has passed after the debut of the Lawyer Ryuuichi Naruhodou.

More new cases have popped up. Get ready for a new adventure as you play the
role of Ryuuichi Naruhodou once again. If you are familiar with the first
game in the series, then this game becomes even more fun. What has changed
since the last game: The detective part's difficulty has increased with

the introduction of the Psycho Lock. Some secrets are locked away inside a
witness. By the second episode you will learn how to unlock this new feature.
Another thing is that your life is now represented by a green life bar instead
of the five exclamation points of the last game. Your life is now carried
over between the detective part and the courtroom part. You lose life for
showing the wrong evidence during the court and Psycho Lock parts. The only
way to recover lost life is to successfully unlocking a Psycho Lock.

1b. Menus

3nf3%lainin ninné; From the beginning of the chapter

AeACH m;nEn3ningné; jFrom the last save point

neapaOué; ;Shake a witness
uAunAntné; jShow a piece of evidence
TAut;;Talk

°UE°ulné; Move

Controls:

Control Pad: Move the cursor.

A button: Enter button.

B button: Cancel button.

L button: Shake witness.

R button: Show witness evidence, or view court records.
Select button: Not used

Start button: Quick Save.
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2. Episode 1 The Lost Reversal
A A A A A A S S S S S S S S A S S A S A A A A A A A A A A A S A A

Aé°i126{E;ALIA°ED

£1-355£ Ei;; 4A° £ b £ B
ATEyoUEEse; (Ei o TASE+ T "ad

£+ £A@RAE2nI°UEBA nI°UnnlFenIl 1o «né; L
£2£4AnTA®EAE2 T2 :0nInenAnEpn 2 +A0MC nAnArn; oA | £
£37£°£26ul°Ife; Iul U210 ¥pY 3 ukmnun | EG: T -U ;£

E+Ei;; AA°£2£°»p
ATEyeOEI2sé; ;Aef2E AT

£71£0C; ¢uEn ! nEnéRCH ag O
pCuoEnanbalog ¢tak+niBynl o

jyiirlox

¢niinunnu"
£ £40pOEE 0 3241kl ;1 | £4; xaOEPYé | £

£9;£E13%2%0aI»aATnl 2bin«méR | «apring

%UnonEnT | ¢uluonCulngaf ;O

¢a i ¥p¥e¥0; i E°EE;0°OpAncng; i xk
iviivay-¥l

¢ap g U»iiéAce ; jEA-AonE»s AninE;2 ik
£ £HUNOEE 0 Y2%6itils ¢ | £2 { xnOE (ATpI nEY0Y | ¥a¥&ning £
£, 1 E»anerk 014 A -eAeA2nEx%Uno A

1O»aATnT 2lngné  «aAnta; ¥4¥-¥Inéneé
aprénBEq ITaE3Unon-a¢nd¥AyY?! £

Ei3240nI¥C M¥EAx| ¢YU¥O¥AuTnen; né
n«réEInlinkapain; ¥AYa— A A ¢

LAR»AR -nEana; ¥A¥ 1 [ £

YIYAYYSnEEL ' onII4A u-
{E1810 EnkEbfingainEann; ¥A¥! j£¢2nAnnAntng S IR2¥0Y ¥ay¥e ;00110  ¥D¥? | x

23 nl%UponEYAY¥-YIindueniansnE; ¢
EalstudlEpMOnEn -nEAARAR -1 YA¥ L [ £ x

£11£»auenl 018 ARI 3 2MOREREI S, Inl @ - A

i OA®EZY#4 ° °nEYDY 3354°°u T | ¢E%C nUnE
HARRCHANEaaERTHCYAY T | £




(E¥+¥AY3¥6 EnllAns; ¢¥U¥A¥U¥A
%Bmmnunanﬁuénﬂ¥ﬁ¥liﬁiéi£

»® rim—a¢aAng Eial | ¢Ei®240n]

AAA  FiwAnAn; ¥AY?! £

¥pyY3yY ¥6jAjA¥py¥inieonl ;¢
¥xYi¥HYOYEROIN®On -nE ;A A

alsn T ¥xYI¥YO¥ERT [ ¢£2¥6 -1ndA  nné
¥ Y&YOYOr -uEnnn; ¥A¥! | £¢ 2 npnpndné

(i BEY°YiY0 A ArInjAA L

iiimEnloBodoAnin 0 R

1V iranAnEnenpadaé

¢ojrananEndn

i A AvicE-o—ABAT noMOR TR naré
ATlnAnEn8YAY?® (£ x

£4£° £t IEARInT¥°¥1 {%¥OnEngnén— ¢

2one @ aengninCulual ;O

(yiiranAnins @ aend

¢ojjranAninG @ - mEnn
£+£4; £3UNOEE ;0¥ °¥1 ;%Y xEptaé i £
£4£2£»anerE: 014 | AEL 2 2%0n—»An -n B »UnEaAnaaE; A

(OYI¥i¥i¥inTnbu® ¢xAupringk »unl
E@AxnOA nUnEnBru; YAY?! | £

¥¥o¥I¥onknané ¢Ei3 240n—tsfinnn; uk
ACAéuTnCuuEn«uAn; ¥AY! £

Y aEYIYi¥Ii¥ianl;c
Ei13230nl; Tapn »@uoA aUn: YA¥! ;£

¥A¥ART " OnE | ¢ ol T¥AYOn—nTapabuAnE

panénlaak | «opaing YAYL £

cIopm »@nlvIivénEng ¢
B, »uxdbsfinnn; °Yalyt¥élsyuq; £

*E%dnlndaku«ré | ¢Ei?24%0nTt | kénC
aenlntndtsinnn g nEACASnCrnEYAY Y {2 x¢ 2 nAnnAntns ;| SHUPOEE | O¥ °¥1 j24¥0 | x

£4£3 1 £1U -ExonEnAnE; ¢4 nl%0; InllAnalk a™ (£

Aeé°i126{E;ATA°EOnIkAning

£1 3158 FEij; AL+ Etnps £3E-
ATEyoUEse; (Ei1 o TASE+ T "dd




£4£° £%UNOEE  OA®EAE2 n I I3»E | x¥ 2¥AYE | £
£HEP£%In (o3 no» 248 nd | £45UNOKE | O¥&Y ' YE | xnoEpYé | £
£1£]£%08: T1ak: 014 iA»6 -1ACKRG;¢1U -4n -ngn3uk A

10,4, 4aIn°nAnE ;¢ g+anC

»x O +ufEadutuAnEonaba ugnl L

»p Onlnén minUn oEaErnntol ;A A
TUEyaI£I»prt a@uI¥ 3 ¥ERCH -1 HK | £

aaaafaaIUaTA ol

U +u-A%a 2 TinAnEon; aouCulue | f

»xain® «HEAR2uEuk ¢ ¢ nAAAREY «¥ 3 md

u-ué%+nEIUnﬁlgnnnpu-nénii£

nauAninénala wEannbal £
i

110AERTIEaM nCr -agafn¢ninl g

AsnE 1241 nCENminAn; n3oEaBoan ob; ¢

¥YDYEYEa-TinAnEaonbr -ugnljfix¢2nAnnAntnd | SHUNOEE ;O¥°¥1 4¥0; x
£4£ - £0Anbré;en3al3U: Inl A A

¢xj  ¥P¥E¥Eu-Act¥n;  jEconllyn-1¥n K

¢ I1ipdnoAlnénEnn; | (EAx3O»pAdnIYOYAYAYS (tan« B
£4f £%0B: 11aE: 014 iA»6 -inolU -an -nEnquénladak A

101 ‘BaE»nllssn; ¢¥U¥ nEpoaAn ak;¢
YNYARRE w2uEnnnnba cagulf

alnenk ¢YUY ninla®al -U» ol
ATE6n -nbu -ng j£¢2nAnnAntnd | SHUNOEE | OA®Eg | {YaénI20Enls | x

U»  wEAATAn—EpuAn;ninl;e
£9»pt  £uf-mAnAn; ppo;pppCrlnl; L

oo AnEYQ¥boAnAn; ainCo -uca | | £
£4+£°E-ndn nEnonCintnAntafan; | £ x
£4£1 £ BukEndénCoanfoan 3 nEnEolaAaEan; | 2
(AnEn ning ;0 E

o |4

i

iyiinunéuEuAnAn3na

¢og pARARER2s B In ndAkny B

£2£°£0En  nCrlng;@; B0, 1i:1;¢
nininClahAénenénbayndnl o

¢ajjlaAénEonjiEe o3 OnAnanonEE i Alnly  «ij?ix ik

iviiekeinlndngn on

£2£47£%0: Tanj¢ g ARTAnSApn nErmmg

alnop—nEooakEnan 30uond; 2¢23%UnokE ;0 %itide s | £+ %

£2£2;£96CoalftepE-nlneonnAe




23al340; Ina2:adn -uErnn; n«jAjA 0

iyiitIaeInene
¢ tin nlaknn

£2£3 £ iE%0; Inlnknts;¢ -UpjnEnln®
AlE6n -nEn«aAn: ngiAjA;0;E¢2%UpnoRE | O¥4aY—¥T

£2£7 £ BEY¢YnYAnE ¢EI15; InlI%A o
Alne¥YAYa¥oY inlakn«aAn; aling; Ok

¢o i ¥AYEY¥O¥ I nTnEnenAng
(Vi ¥AYavoe¥ i ula¢ufAn,

£2f8p;£03al3%0; Inn; ¢ukn ! nanAnE
Ei16nll%A° noAlnén 3 aka-aCan: n«O¢ 2%UpokE O -EACAATA | x

£2£9;£aCrl [ ¢ASY 1 -pnERERéRRDR sHgH | (£
220nl3%0: ol (EE ) jErdk n13Unond | 2¢2%Unokk { O¥&¥ 1 ¥E | x

£2£ ;£ -éuboAnEnén naoBnnaCalng?
Ya¥i¥g¥ayanl A A

iRt T¥ O ¥E [ WY xR nURERRK
(B imdnlyve ¥ xuiRis 2l

1yt IYYE Yy xal®i®s

£2£ i£ WHinC, «Xg ( ¢Y¥YPY¥O¥rmanl s
(A AnEronCrlng;©; jntsrinl e IR2¥0Y  ¥uye OAGED | (24é | x

£2£1 £ B2 R«jAJA;® %R, «IinE™ ‘10

o -nEoaaénlanA; 2R

¢og i APT  pprinErnnEEO tendA alné
177 ‘EACAATIAnI»@landA alné

£3£°;£iB;A;AnEn | atag;?
3alapubnCoonaaling;AjA;0E

cojHen | alnd «ué

iviitOpAnd ten - TonERE

£3£4fn¢akn:al I non aUnE34UIAR t ng
HBUPOEEROL+uA £ A An? «amnEopnn; 2¢234UnokE  OA®EAE2 T I3%nE | x

£3£2£%Un0EE  O°UELAL n I I3nE | xnOEPYE | £

£3£3 1 £uballdpEnlnbad Al xulalng;©
olsaial A A

iR IMsErEbsfingaing 134A°

1viiI%a»Enly véll

U110 ;¥pY3 ik -&;8Ip°a
(eEEsTSwok: 11 p@21

AGEAEZ2uIp2tn-T4né £

%UpOEEY¥OY | ¥nye




{URU,i»1¥PYAY ;0
e wl;EE-1d

%UIAR -uEr aipng;¢
AcAUnEYPYAY mA;f

iU -EACAATA; U

¥¥2yY pEolaBmonntoi;¢
aUn al¥V¥+¥AYEOE
EprAnErnn; xanl £
pitte.a

{1 ¥DPY¥3u— @tanChs|uAn;nanlif
i ificEka Yaenll¢iin—menAn;

pieai¢ minfneafng L

{UA®Eg | j2énl26EqnIs 0
»ak’ ;aRé»plinlf? -1£JE0
L4 AfET»pE2s Enif»a’onl
A sEnIACEPREY ¥Onl'{AD;f

1UYay-¥1;0

»aATul 2bn«rél™ | «apring (£
EOJ4nE ;¢a»eiNniyiyoye
nlv«yty¥énalinAnEann; £

10, %adkls o 1£4;0
Ei3240nT¢%adnll -BaE»
naréhAlin ng  ££I¥0¥¥6

BC , «rér3nEa-nCand £

10 Y%iklo g 1 £2;0
Ei22%0nlénanEad»f R
ooagudnl ££1¥UY¥6RC

L «RER3aEronCRRs | £

10Y°¥1%4¥0;0
¥p¥3nEis2y0alAAA EinE
¥xYI1¥MY¥O¥En -nynanl g
FARiEEnén -un;f

{UAGEAE2nT1%»E ;0
U oIl EnA £¥ | ¥&11InE
aUn ul -BEACAATARIED 'er—

HEbAnuCurprinEraré | £

1U¥ey ¥E; U

L «ATnénlT3A° nEAATARO
a-EAnouCrund | £°4ptsAAnT
TEp;¥a0uén -uau-jA AL
pitte.a

i1 °%untsAArTI%A ok

i AATAEO @ £¥DY 3u—ts| nAng
i1 "EACAATAmEADI; £

(UCOEMA nII%»E ;0
AdbsfinEnnn | aloAnin gt
EI°T ¥eYq¥aY«aEI4A®un

LiingainEoéo— ¢EEndnkon ;£




cIE2¥0¥  ¥nye

cUi110;;¥p¥3 ) Untu®u;juba®;0;;£2£2°D
o wi°ffesis
E@:T U tnEnaa | A%al ¢

aEnEnd»xaakpunaknn £

A®Eg; ;%€ ;UnbuAn?®; nbundné;U;£3£°°D
LA%ONC | e»d - inlki 3230 £
Eiténl;U;110;;¥pY3nEnl

12°! '@ nEa¢almgnén -aa;f

°iEA;{EOE, i iUn¢rimA; jugntnlnR Ui £pL3°D
3aline -inlA AS, (»0if
2.in-aldn  ¢aEndaknfa

¥N¥AnEn -aEroAlR; £

»aApgii %28 iUnonkEalindn@ué | jutaanlnt ;0] £3£+°D
1831knT - °»8i L

»loIaleE AU oA A £

AT%I¥aYEY¥IY3 %5 £

¥b¥Y&¥u;jUnbrénn;0;;C I6EO0IA
upnﬁnan_nanUn”nﬁuEun

alnAn—;¢nka ! ngné

Almélcronén -uxjf

pitte.a

P1i%%Ing e UnenamunE | jrbaénn U £1£, °D
i 1£4CTAmPaC ¢nUnT nilaké

jjeon nEn minFoang L

1 11iCh»0OnEn -ugtsn 1 ORa £

LOR: 11 p®21; Unaninguaad | jn;n«aban Ui (£2£2°D
Licklje®ifonlilz 1A £

YiE-nEtcrn | Ag3drd

Apx -aErnonénEog; £

Ae°iAPIA; MCninin;nOAMnIindning

A A A A A A R A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
ASEOAPIA; ;°E2fi; ¢rlon -uEnOAY
3. Episode 2 The Reunion, and then the Reversal
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3a. Detective Part, Day 1
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3b. Courtroom Part, Day 1
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4. Episode 3 Reversal Circus
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4a. Detective Part, Day 1
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4b. Courtroom Part, Day 1
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5b. Courtroom Part, Day 1
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6a. Episode 1

Defendant: Mako Suzuki
Victim: Mamoru Machio
Prosecutor: Takefumi Auchi
Date: 09/08/17

The Lost Reversal. The story opens with you (as Naruhodou) having a
nightmare. It is one with the Judge punishing you by declaring you are not
worthy of being a lawyer. He slams the hammer down as you wake up. This is

a preview of the fourth episode, so don't worry about that for now. After
waking up, you listen to the melody on your cellular phone. Somebody comes up
from behind and hits you on the head with a fire extinguisher.




A few moments later, you wake up with amnesia. Then a policewoman greets you.

She is Mako Suzuki, your client for this case. She is accused of murdering
Mamoru Machio, also a police officer. You promised her that you will get the
not guilty verdict, but it seems like you forgotten that promise. In the

courtroom, your first opponent once again is Takefumi Auchi. The first
witness called to the stand is Detective Keisuke Itonokogiri. He is not too

happy, since the defendant was his subordinate.

Itonoko gives a general overview of the case. The murder happened in Wanpaku
Park, which is nearby the police station. The victim was Officer Mamoru
Machio. It looks as though he was pushed off from the bench above. His
entire body has bruises and his neck was broken. The victim's wrist watch
stopped when he hit the ground, so the estimated time of death was around
6:28 P.M. according to the autopsy record. The prosecutor presents a picture

of the murder scene for your records.

The Judge will ask some questions to see if you where paying attention. He
will ask you what piece of evidence was found under the body of the victim.
Use the R button to check the Court Record to find out it was the glasses.
It seems that the victim grabbed the criminal's glasses before falling down.
It doesn't look good, since the glasses worn by Mako are her spare ones, but
she insists the glasses at the scene are not hers. Auchi presents another
piece of evidence, one that Itonoko will testify about.

Itonoko says a stronger piece of evidence than the glasses were found. On the
ground, the victim wrote the name of the criminal, Suzuki with his finger.
Show him the profile of Mako Suzuki to point out that the Kanji written on the

ground is different that the defendant's name.

¢Uj11I0{Ertn°n E;;Suzuki = Defendant's name, which is less common.

T81U0;Entn®xE;;Suzuki = Name written on the ground, the more common name.

After your first objection, you feel a familiar sense. Your memory is slowly
starting to return. Auchi objects in return, saying the defendant

didn't know the right name. However, the victim and defendant were close, so
that mistaken name cannot be case. Itonoko then testifies about the
relationship between the defendant and the victim. He says they have been
seeing each other for over half a year. There was even talk about marriage.
At the date of the murder, it was the victim's birthday. Officer Mako had a
present prepared two months in advance. Itonoko was part of the consultation,
so that's how he knew about it.

Shake him to find out the present was a baseball glove. It was a specially
made glove, hence the two month delay. The Judge decides the two were lovers.
So now, did the wvictim really write that name in the sand? Itonoko continues
his testimony. First he searched the handwriting of the victim, but he
couldn't find a definitive answer. Then he searched the victim's index
finger. Between the nail and finger, some grains of sand were stuck there.
Also on the belly of the finger, there were abrasion marks that prove the
finger was used to write the name in the sand. Finally, Itonoko concludes the

victim's right hand wrote those letters.

Show him the evidence, the glove. That glove was specially made for a left
hand thrower (although it is possible the victim could throw left and write
with the right hand, oh well). Then the question becomes, who left that name
in the ground? The Judge is about to hand down the verdict, but Auchi throws
an objection, saying he is not finished. There is another witness that saw
the moment the victim was pushed off. Plus the witness saw the criminal's
face. The Judge orders a short break. Back at the defendant's waiting room,



Mako finds out that you lost your memory, so she gives you a card with
your name on it. There are some numbers written on the back. It is the
phone number to your cellular phone.

Mako says that phone had importance when you had your memory. At the day of
the murder, around 6 P.M., while waiting for Mamoru, she picked up a cell
phone that was laying on the ground. That phone was ringing, so she answered
it. She said her name, Suzuki, and the voice on the other end said he dropped
that phone. Suzuki agreed to meet him to return the phone. The guy kept
asking what her name was. She repeated Suzuki, then she promised to meet at

6 P.M. She waited, but the guy never showed up.

That phone should be in your possession, in your pocket. Before you can think,
Mayoi Ayasato (the spirit mediator from the first game) shows up. You don't
remember, since your memory is still in a haze. She brings a piece of
evidence for you to use. It is a list of about 20 people and their cell

phone numbers. These people are swindlers and are currently being
investigated by the police. Those phone numbers were recorded on the phone
that Mako picked up at the park.

Back to the courtroom, Auchi brings forth the new witness. The witness is a
little tough to communicate with, so be patient. Apparently, he is one of the
high class people. He introduces himself as Takamasa Moroheiya, a college
student. 1In his testimony, he says while mediating at the park, around 6
P.M., he saw a body of a policeman on the ground. Looking up, he saw the
horror on the face of the defendant. The only other thing he saw was a banana
laying on the ground nearby. Show him the evidence, the glove. Moroheiya

has mistaken the glove for a banana. This means the witness is near-sighted.

Moroheiya says he recently lost his glasses. At the time of the murder, the
witness admits to not wearing glasses. The Judge orders the witness to give a
more precise testimony. Moroheiya says when the woman noticed him, she ran
away. Then he called the police. The call came at 6:45 P.M. Show him the
Autopsy Record of Mamoru Machio. The witness says he phoned the police
immediately, but the autopsy shows the time of death at 6:28 P.M. However,
his call to the police came at 6:45 P.M., a 15 minute difference. What was
the witness doing in those 15 minutes? Takamasa says he was searching for a
public telephone. He admits he didn't have a cell phone, since he did drop
his cell phone somewhere.

Could the phone Mako found in the park be Takamasa's phone? You ask him, but
the witness does have his cell phone right now. Then you realize Takamasa
could not have been looking for a public telephone. The proof is the Crime
Scene Photo #1. That picture clearly shows a telephone right there at the
murder scene! Why would it take 15 minutes to call, when there is a phone
right there in front of him, three steps away? The Judge has to quiet down
the excited crowd. What was the witness really doing in those 15 minutes?
You have a idea. Show the Judge the glasses. Takamasa admits those are his
glasses. Those glasses were found under the body of the victim.

Takamasa spent 15 minutes trying to find those glasses, but he couldn't find
them.

Here's your chance. The real criminal used the victim's right hand to write
that Suzuki name in the ground. How did Takamasa know the name Suzuki? Show
the Judge the Cellular Phone. That's when he heard the name Suzuki and that's
the reason he wrote the wrong letters. He only heard the name, but never had
a chance to see the actual Kanji, so he had to guess and pick the more

common name. So now what was his motive for killing? Show the Judge the
List. That list has the cell phone numbers of a suspected swindler group.
Those numbers were on Takamasa's cell phone. He killed trying to get his



phone back. Takamasa Moroheiya is a member of that swindler group. Auchi
objects and says the witness was promised the return of his phone. Why would
he need to kill for that?

Takamasa must have seen something to change his mind. He saw the victim,
Mamoru Machio. Mamoru was off duty, but he was still wearing his uniform when
he went on his date. The police uniform scared Takamasa, so that's why he
killed Mamoru. Takamasa then asks if you can prove that the cell phone you
are holding is his. You say to search the fingerprints of the phone. However
Mako tells you that you were the one who wiped phone clean. Then you ask
where did Takamasa eventually find his phone? You remember now. In the
waiting room before trial began, you were holding your own phone when someone
hit you from behind. You suspect it was the witness, but can't prove it yet.

You fell a step short. The questioning is over, but you throw out an
objection. The Judge gives you one chance. Show him your own Business Card.
The Judge will trade you his card, but the real purpose is the back of the
card. Your cell number is written on there. You ask Mayoi to dial that
number on her phone. Hearing the Tonosaman' melody from Takamasa's phone,
that's the final proof Takamasa stole your cell phone to cover the loss of his
own phone. He did it this morning, right before trial started, but Takamasa
accidentally took the wrong phone! Takamasa Moroheiya has been arrested for
the murder of Mamoru Machio. The verdict for Mako Suzuki: Not Guilty.

Back in the waiting room, the defendant thanks you. She admits to being real
unlucky in her life. She was the Goddess of Sorrow throughout her school
years. In the police academy, she was the Fallen Angel. ©Now she will look to
start a new life. Afterwards, you gain your memory back. Mayoi wants to go
to her favorite Ramen shop. With the return of your memory, you think back to
the time two months ago. That's the time you reunited with Mayoi. The story
of two months ago will the focus of the next episode. Conclusion: The real

criminal is Takamasa Moroheivya.

6b. Episode 2

Defendant: Mayoi Ayasato
Victim: Tetsurou Kirisaki
Prosecutor: Mei Karuma

Date: 06/16/17 ~ 06/22/17

The Reunion, and then the Reversal. The episode opens with a car accident.

An unknown narrator talks about sleeping pills and revenge. Now you see Mayoi
in the detainment cell. Mayoi thinks she did kill someone. It all started on
that gloomy day. This episode takes place about two months before the first
episode. The flashback begins.

A man wearing glasses visits your office. He is complaining about the
weather, especially the rain. He is a surgeon named Tetsurou Kirisaki. He
shows you a newspaper article that tells a story how 14 people died in an
accident during a medical treatment. Tetsurou insists that a nurse made the
mistake, but that nurse is already dead. She was involved in a car accident
about a year ago. That story made the news, but that nurse's death is still a
mystery. Now patients won't come to his institute, so he is troubled.
Tetsurou is being accused of the murder of that nurse. He asks for your help,
along with Mayoi Ayasato. He wants to communicate with the dead spirit of
that nurse. Although this would be Mayoi's first time outside of training,

she would do it on the condition that she can meet you once again.

So now we go visit Mayoi's hometown, Kurain. Upon arrival, a little girl



appears, but she runs away. You reunite with Mayoi. She never thought you
would show up, since the train ride is about two hours from your office. Soon
you find out the little girl you just saw was Harumi Ayasato, Mayoi's younger
cousin. Harumi doesn't know much about the outside world, but she is the
treasure of her mother's. 1In the study room, you meet Tetsurou. He wants a
memorandum from the spirit that admits to being the cause of death of the

14 patients. That and the admission of making a mistake for falling asleep at
the wheel, causing that car accident.

In the meeting room, you meet Kimiko Ayasato, Mayoi's grandmother. You find
out Mayoi is the last in the family to have the bloodline of the original
Head of the Family. Kimiko is from a separate branch of the Ayasato Family.
A branch member cannot become the leader of the house, no matter how powerful
their spiritual powers are. The room you are currently in will be used for
the spiritual communication. Only the client and the spirit mediator are
allowed inside during the ceremony. Harumi is Kimiko's daughter. Visit the
Hallway and the Waiting Room. After searching the bed, return to the hallway
to meet Natsumi Oosawagi. She is the camera woman with the Kansai Dialect
from the last game.

She tells you the ceremony is about to begin, so go to the study room. Mayoi
will hold the only key to the door. Mayoi and Tetsurou enter the meeting
room. A few minutes later, a gunshot is heard from the meeting room. Soon
after a second gunshot is heard. Natsumi recognizes that sound as a gunshot.
You bust open the door. Inside, you find the corpse of Tetsurou Kirisaki.
Natsumi immediately takes a picture of the crime scene. You see an adult
looking Mayoi covered in blood. Mayoi says that man killed her, that's why
she killed him in return. Natsumi snaps another photo, this time of Mayoi.

Kimiko tells you to leave before anymore victims arise. She will take care of
the rest.

You call the police using the phone at the entrance. Talking with Natsumi,
she admits the woman you saw at the scene was not Mayoi. When Mayoi calls

forth a spirit, her form changes to one that matches the spirit. Natsumi
doubts Mayoi could have killed Dr. Tetsurou. About that doctor, there wasn't
many positive reports about him. He was skilled, but his personality was less
than favorable. He got angry at patients or nurses that didn't do as he
liked. Back at the study room, Kimiko greets you. She removed the spirit
that possessed Mayoi, so Mayoi is back to normal. Then Detective Itonoko

arrives on the scene. He proceeds to search the crime scene.

Follow them into the meeting room. Itonoko says looking at situation, Mayoi
has to be criminal. Tetsurou's temple has been shot, but he was also stabbed
in the chest with a knife. Visit the waiting room to meet Nodoka Hanaka, a
psychology student. Apparently she didn't know about the murder that just
occurred here. She was sleeping here the whole time. You ask her if she knows
the victim, but she says no. However, you find that strange since the victim
said otherwise before he died. You get the sense Nodoka is hiding something

from you.

Back in the hallway, you meet Harumi once again, but she won't talk to you.
Harumi is holding a key in her hand, but before you can ask her about it, she
runs away again. At the entrance, meet Natsumi and she will be happy that she
got a big scoop by taking those pictures. Kimiko invites you to stay the
night. You sleep over for the night. The next day, you meet Mayoi at the
detainment cell. She remembers the part when she closed her eyes in that
room. That's all she remembers. Mayoi saw a dream of herself dying and being
buried in the earth. She is shocked when you offer to be her lawyer. Since
court is tomorrow, there isn't much time. Mayoi gives you her Jjewel. This
should make Harumi help you.



Back to the scene of the crime, talk to Kimiko. She explains that the folding
screen and the Kurain Pot are the village's treasure. As for Harumi, although
she is from the branch family, Harumi's powers rival that of the main Ayasato
Family. As you search the folding screen that's sitting in the back of the
room, you notice there is a small hole about 20 cm off the ground. You record
that fact as evidence. Visit the waiting room to meet Nodoka Hanaka again.
She denies any knowledge of the victim of the case. You notice a big box in
the room that wasn't there yesterday. Back in the hallway, you meet Harumi
once again. Show her Mayoi's Jewel and she will agree to help you.

Harumi picked up a black key around here yesterday. Harumi gives you that
black key as evidence. This key looks a lot like the key Mayoi had yesterday.
Afterwards, Harumi powers up Mayoi's Jewel. With this item, you can now read
into people's minds to find secrets in the form of the Psycho Lock. Visit
Nodoka again and ask about the victim. Now you see a lock appear with chains.
This is the Psycho Lock. The other person cannot see it, only you can. The
more secrets the person has, the more locks you will see. You must show the
person Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock. The unlock process is just
like the courtroom battle. You must show evidence to get the person to open

up.

If you fail in unlocking though, your life will go down, so think carefully.
Your green life bar carries over between the detective part and the courtroom
part, so try not to make too many errors. The only way to restore lost life
is successfully unlocking a person' Psycho Lock. That recovers about 75% of
your life. Sometimes you may not have enough evidence to unlock the Psycho
Lock, so you will have to come back later after you have enough evidence.
That's the case right now, so explore some more. Itonokogiri will explain
that all the evidence points to Mayoi. Plus he has bad news and even more
bad news. The bad news is that tomorrow's prosecutor is Karuma, but you
defeated Gou Karuma in the fourth episode from the first game in the series.

The even more bad news is that it is the second generation Karuma. At 13,
Karuma's child became a prosecutor and hasn't lost a battle. The second
generation was born and raised in America. When you think of the name
Karuma, you can't help but think about that case from the first game. The
fourth episode that had the DL#6 Case and Reiji Mitsurugi. It seems that
Mitsurugi is dead right now, however. Go back to your office to pick up the
newspaper article that Tetsurou left behind. Show that article to Itonoko
and he will give you another article. The second one describes the car
accident of the nurse. The nurse's name was Mimi Hanaka. Now you have some
evidence for the Psycho Lock.

Visit Nodoka and show her Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock. Show her
the Newspaper Article #2 to prove her connection with the victim, Tetsurou.
Her sister Mimi Hanaka was a nurse at Kirisaki Surgical Institute. Psycho
Lock unlock successful. Nodoka says Kirisaki was kind of rough. She believes
Tetsurou was responsible for the death of those 14 patients. Before you can
leave the village, Harumi will tell you she has to stay in this village. Meet
Mayoi back at the detainment cell. 1Instead, you find Chihiro Ayasato has
taken over Mayoi's body. Chihiro died in episode two of the last game, but
she has being using Mayoi as a way to keep in contact with you.

Chihiro believes Mayoi is completely innocent. A spirit mediator can't see
dreams. During a spiritual calling, the user loses consciousness. Mayoi was
caught in a trap. Show Chihiro the black key. She points out the
contradiction. Why do you have the key? Mayoi had that key before the murder
happened. Harumi gave this key to you. The biggest surprise of the day is
that Chihiro has three Psycho Locks attached. You will open those later on



so don't worry about it for now. For now, just prepare for the battle that
will come tomorrow.

The next day in court, you find out that the second generation Karuma is a
she. Her name is Mei Karuma and she wields a mean whip. She left America to
come to Japan for one reason and that's revenge. She found out her father,
Gou Karuma, lost to you. The Karuma family is about perfection. She will
prove the guilt of the defendant, Mayoi Ayasato. Mei will ask if you are
going to insist the defendant killed in self-defense, or will you insist that
the defendant is completely innocent. You chose completely innocent, since
self-defense will be same as admitting to the killing. Mei calls you a fool
as she calls her first witness, Detective Itonoko.

He will give a general description of the murder. The meeting room had no
windows and the door was locked. Only the victim and the defendant were
inside when the murder occurred. The defendant was calling a spirit. Shortly
afterwards, two gunshots were heard. Naruhodou busted open the door, but the
victim was already dead. Itonoko testifies that the direct cause of death was
a bullet that pierced the victim's temple area. The bullet was shot at
point-blank range. However, before being shot, the victim was also stabbed in
the chest with a knife. That stab wasn't instant death, so Itonoko believes
the pistol shot was the finishing blow.

Shake him to find out that the pistol had Tetsurou's and Mayoi's fingerprints
on it. Point-blank range was about 30~50 cm. The stabbing weapon was a fruit
knife with Mayoi's fingerprints on it. The Judge says that's enough. The
estimated time of death was 3:15 P.M. on the 19th of this month. All the
evidence points to Mayoi as the killer. Mei asks the Judge to throw down the
hammer right now with the Guilty verdict. The Judge asks if you still believe
in the completely innocent path. Mei's prediction of you changing your mind
within ten minutes is coming true. Yet, you still stick with the completely
innocent path. Mei whips you and asks Itonoko to give the final testimony.

Itonoko testifies of an even stronger piece of evidence. The clothes Mayoi
was wearing has bloodstains on them. Shake Itonoko to find that the blood is
that from the victim. Inquire further and then your chance comes to show the
Judge what's wrong with Mayoi's costume. Point to the hole in the sleeve.
Around the hole, there is the scent of gunpowder, so it is a bullet hole.
However, Mei Karuma is smiling. She says continue on, but you object, saying
that is a big miss. The Judge says you need more solid evidence to prove your
case. Itonoko says the victim was killed with no resistance. Show him the
updated Mayoi's Costume. The bullet hole proves the victim did show some
resistance. Mei says it does seem like the victim did shoot at the defendant.

That would make for killed in self-defense. However, you chose completely
innocent, so you still haven't proven your case yet. Mei orders, with the
whip, Itonoko to re-create the murder scene with the new information
uncovered. In the part where he says the victim shot, but missed because of
the close range, show him Mayoi's Costume again. If it was shot that close,
then why is there no burn marks? This means the defendant was far away from
the victim. Mei argues that the victim could have pushed the defendant away.
Objection. You explain that's impossible, since the victim was stabbed
already. The victim was near death. Mei Karuma is sweating. Then she says
the defendant pushed the victim away, then attacked once more, then the
victim fired the shot.

Show the Folding Screen as evidence. There is a hole in that screen about 20
cm off the floor. This means Mayoi must have been in a crouching position
when that bullet fired. Looking at the map, point to the area in front of the
folding screen hole to show where the defendant was. This changes the



situation. If Mayoi was the criminal, why would she be crouching in front of
the folding screen? Mei still looks unimpressed. She calls her next witness,
but before that, a five minute break is taken. When court resumes, Natsumi
Oosawagi takes the stand. She offers the picture she took at the scene as
evidence. She saw Mayoi when she entered the room, but shake her to get her
to admit the person didn't look like Mayoi.

Natsumi said she made sure no one else was in the room. You can't find
anything by shaking the witness. You can't prove the person in the picture
isn't Mayoi. Then Chihiro appears inside of Harumi. She tells you to
continue questioning the witness. Shake Natsumi when she says talks about
taking a picture of Mayoi. She took two pictures, but she offered only one
picture as evidence. Natsumi didn't offer the second picture because

the Prosecutor stopped her from doing so. Mei is trying to hide some
evidence, just like her father. Mei explains that the picture in question
doesn't need to be offered as evidence since both pictures show about the
same thing. However, the second picture shows the person holding the gun is

not Mayoi.

Then Mei shows a picture of Chihiro possessing Mayoi's body. The picture is
from the detainment cell, but Chihiro reminds Mei that picture is illegal.
Mei knows that, so she doesn't plan on using that picture as evidence.
However, now that the Judge was seen that picture, he can't erase that from
his memory. More underhanded tricks from the Karuma family, but you're used
to that by now. There is a way out though. Show the Judge what is wrong
with the second picture. On the costume, the sleeve doesn't have a bullet
hole! Mei Karuma is sweating again. She explains the police missed the
hole in the first place, that's why she didn't know about the hole until now.

The meaning of this picture is that someone else did the shooting. Now the
question becomes, where did the defendant go? Where did this person come
from? A third person must have entered that room, or Mayoi must have left
that room. Show the Black Key to prove Mayoi must have left the room. When
Mayoi was arrested, she didn't have the key in her possession. Mei is afraid
to ask, but she wonders why you have that key. You explain Harumi gave you
this key. The Judge decides it's too early for a verdict. Court will

resume tomorrow at 10:00 A.M. Mei Karuma vows to get the guilty verdict

no matter the cost. Back at the Kurain Village, talk to Harumi. You find out
the prosecutor Mitsurugi died while holding on to his foolish pride. You ask
about Harumi's alibi, but then two Psycho Locks appear. You don't have enough

evidence yet, so we shall come back later.

In the meeting room, you find Kimiko talking to herself. More precisely, she
is talking to a picture she calls Maiko. About Maiko, her whereabouts are
unknown. She disappeared about 16 years ago after a failed attempt in calling
a spirit (the DL#6 Case). 1In four years, Maiko's name will disappear from
this village. 1In the Kurain Village, after 20 years of leaving the place,
that person is considered dead. A new head of the family will be born in four
years. At this rate Mayoi will be the next leader, but now that this murder
case happened, that may not happen. Continue searching the place by wvisiting

the waiting room. Search around, but you won't find anything of significance.

Visit Harumi and show her the black key. She claims to have found that key
inside the incinerator. The time was about when the spiritual mediation

was over. Visit the hallway to meet Nodoka Hanaka. She talks about the

pot you see over there. That pot has the spirit of Kyouko Ayasato inside.
Kyouko is the founder, or originator of the Kurain Style Spiritual Mediation.
About the car accident, that is Psycho Locked, so you will have to come back
later. Search the incinerator to find a piece of cloth with a bloodstain on
it. Also, search the pot to find that it is cracked. Plus the Kanji for



‘children' is written on it. How strange.

Now visit the detention cell to meet Mayoi. After talking a bit, you think
that Mayoi was put to sleep right before the murder. As for Harumi's Alibi,
Mayoi says the two were playing with a regular ball. That ball should be in
the garment box that's in the waiting room. Visit that place to pick up that
ball, then search the garment box. Natsumi will jump out of that hiding
place. She wanted to crawl into a hole after her testimony, that's why she
hid there. Then you notice something strange. There is a small hole in that
box about 20 cm from the floor. That's the same distance as the hole in the
folding screen, which was at the crime scene. Now you have a lead in this

case, so take down this information as evidence.

Go to the training room to meet Harumi. Show her Mayoi's Jewel to begin the
Psycho Lock. You say Harumi was at the hallway at the time of the murder.
You show her that she was playing with the ball in that hallway. Something
terrible happened there. Show her the Kurain Pot. Harumi must have
accidentally hit the pot with the ball, causing it to break into pieces.
Harumi says that's an old pot, so a few cracks are not out of the ordinary.
Show her who the founding person of the Kurain Style Spiritual Mediation is.
It is Kyouko Ayasato.

Ii»0iEumgan? ki Kyouko
»09; iEr3aEra E; ;Kodomo (Children)

How did those Kanji switch? Harumi is only eight years old, and she admits
she can't read Kanji. ©Unlock successful. Harumi admits to breaking the

pot. She didn't want Kimiko or anyone to find out about it. Harumi tried

to glue to broken pieces back together, right there in the middle of the
hallway. (I still don't know how those letters switch places. Oh well, it's
just a game.) This was about the time the spiritual mediation was taking
place. She is afraid of being punished, but you say Kyouko must be happy to
get out of that cramped space inside the pot.

Go back to the entrance to meet Natsumi. She says the criminal could be that
occult mania, Nodoka Hanaka, since there is no one else. Show her Nodoka's
profile, then Natsumi will tell you what she knows. About a half year ago,
Nodoka was hospitalized. Natsumi doesn't know the details, so you have to
search that on your own. She gives you the address to that hospital. Next
stop is the Hotta Clinic. Here, you meet a strange doctor, who claims to be
the head doctor of the place. You ask about Nodoka Hanaka. He says she left
the hospital gquite a long time ago. This place is a smaller hospital that
takes in the overflow of patients from the main hospital.

This place does surgical operations, namely plastic surgery. You try to
find out what Nodoka was doing here, but the doctor says that private
information between the patient and doctor. So show him your Lawyer's

Badge and he will say he is really not the head doctor of this place. Hotta
tells you about one year ago, she came in here from the main hospital.
Nodoka was injured. It required body wrap. He says it was from a car
accident. Nodoka's surgical procedure was on her burnt face. Using a
picture of hers, the doctor was able to reconstruct her face. The picture
was from Nodoka's Driver's License.

The doctor then shows the newspaper article that covers the accident. It
seems Nodoka was sitting in the passenger side seat at the time of the
accident. Nodoka was asleep, but the shock of impact and sea of flames

made her wake up. She managed to escape, but her sister didn't make it.
After surgery, it took a half year to recover from her wounds. Nodoka left
the hospital around December of last year. Now you have enough evidence for



Nodoka's Psycho Lock. Return to Kurain Village. Before that though, Natsumi
has some news for you. Kimiko has been visited by the police. Natsumi tells
you that Kimiko was afraid of someone taking her seat as the head of the
family.

Right now, Maiko Ayasato is the head of the family, but Kimiko was supposed
to be the leader. Normally the eldest daughter of the family inherits the
leadership of the family. Kimiko is the older sister of Maiko. However,
Kimiko lost to Maiko's powers, and the people of the village teased her for
that. If Kimiko had won, Mayoi would have become the branch part of the
family instead of Harumi. Now go to the hallway to confront Nodoka. As
usual, show her Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock. She will ask, who's
accident? Show her none other than herself. Do you have proof? Show her the
Newspaper Article #2. She says that's not her, it is a coincidence that they
have the same name. Do you have proof Nodoka was hospitalized? Yes, show
her the Driver's License Picture. The doctor of Hotta Clinic had this
picture. There's one lock gone. Show her Mimi Hanaka, her sister. This
shows the relevance of that incident and the current murder case. Success!
You have removed the Psycho Lock.

Nodoka will admit to being in the car with her sister. She slept in the
passenger side. Her sister didn't survive the crash. That crash occurred as
a result of sleeping pills given by Dr. Kirisaki. That would give motive for
her sister's spirit to kill. Back at the entrance, you find Detective
Itonokogiri and Harumi. Itonoko leaves along with Kimiko for questioning. It
seems Kimiko will be witness tomorrow in court. Visit Mayoi in the detainment
cell. More precisely, Chihiro. Now it is time to challenge her Psycho Lock.
Chihiro says there must have been someone inside the meeting room before the
murder. Use Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock.

Chihiro asks who is the person you think she is hiding? Show her the profile
of Kimiko Ayasato. One unlocked. She then asks to show evidence that Kimiko
is suspicious. The answer is the Piece of Cloth. That cloth was found in

the incinerator and it looks like Mayoi's clothes with a blood stain on it.
Kimiko must have switched Mayoi's clothes before Mayoi got arrested. Now, can
you prove that cloth is part Mayoi's costume? Yes, show her the Black Key as
evidence. Mayoi had that key before the murder, and that key was found in

the incinerator afterwards. Only Kimiko had access to Mayoi. The second

one unlocked.

However, Kimiko does have an alibi. Chihiro asks what did Kimiko need in
order to murder Kirisaki? The answer is the person Nodoka Hanaka. So the

two needed each other to perform this murder. Psycho Lock removed. Now the
question is, what was the motive for killing? The answer is Mayoi's mother,
Maiko. You have all the necessary preparations done. Now it's just winning
in court tomorrow. The next day in court, the Prosecutor Mei Karuma will tell
you to watch tonight news for your defeat. It will be broadcast all over

for the world to see. As for the case, the prosecution will admit that the
defendant did leave the meeting room sometime between the murder and Mayoi's
arrest.

Mei says that Mayoi left the room after killing the victim. She calls her
first witness, Kimiko Ayasato. As usual, Mei whips the Judge to silence.
Kimiko testifies that Mayoi pushed her out of the way and disappeared. You
shake her and ask her the reason for sending you and Natsumi to call the
police. Kimiko didn't want anymore victims. She covered for the defendant.
You can't find anything wrong with Kimiko's testimony. Now Mei says the
defendant had a conversation with her next witness. Nodoka Hanaka takes the
stand. She says her sister told her that car crash was no accident. That's
why her sister took revenge. Shake her to revise her testimony. She says



there was nothing out of the ordinary on Mayoi's clothes. Show her Mayoi's
costume. It is bloodstained. That's out the ordinary.

Continuing with her testimony, shake her to get her to say on the way to the
meeting room, there was no one. Show her the profile of Harumi Ayasato.
Harumi was there, gluing back the pieces of the broken pot in the middle of
the hallway. If Nodoka's testimony is true, then she should have met Harumi
on the way to the meeting room, since the hallway is the only way there. Mei
objects, but show her the Kurain Pot. Harumi was sitting in the middle of

the hallway. There is no way she could have missed that. Nodoka says she was
sleeping in the waiting room, but there is a discrepancy. Nodoka says only
Kimiko was in the meeting room, but how could she know that if she were
sleeping in the waiting room?

This means Nodoka went to the meeting room, without passing through the
hallway. Mei throws an objection and asks where you think Nodoka was at the
time of the murder. Point to the meeting room itself, the place of the
murder. Mei responds by saying there was only the victim and the defendant

in that room. This means Nodoka was hiding somewhere in that room. Where?
Behind the Folding Screen! Mei says that's absurd, yesterday's testimony
revealed there was no one back there. You insist Nodoka was back there. Show
the Garment Box. It has been proven an adult person can fit inside the box.
Natsumi was hiding in this box yesterday. Mei objects and says that box was
in the waiting room. Show her the folding screen.

Both the screen and the box have a bullet hole 20 cm above the ground. This
proves the box was at the crime scene, behind the folding screen. Mei is
sweating once again. Nodoka was waiting inside the box for a chance to kill
Tetsurou Kirisaki. Mei objects and asks for an explanation for the picture.
Is the person in the picture Nodoka? Yes it is. ©Nodoka was hiding in the box
dressed up like Mayoi. Mei claims that's impossible for one person to do.
That's right, but Nodoka had an accomplice in Kimiko Ayasato. Kimiko is the
only one who could provide Nodoka with the clothes and the box. Kimiko was
the one to drive you and Natsumi out of the room. Mei still doesn't give up.

She says you are missing one thing. Why would Nodoka go through all this
trouble? There is no motive for her to kill the victim. You say the motive
is the death of her sister Mimi, but Nodoka says she left the hospital a

half year ago. If she had revenge on her mind, she would have done that
earlier. The Judge says you don't have a case, but you object anyway, asking
for one more minute. After consulting with Chihiro, you will find a motive
for Nodoka. The Judge orders a five minute break. When court resumes, Nodoka
testifies about the car accident that happened a year ago. Shake her to find

out why Nodoka didn't change drivers seeing that her sister looked tired.

Nodoka says she didn't have a driver license. However, show her the evidence,
the License Photo. She does have a driver license, but she claims that
license was delivered after the accident. That's not true, she had the
license at the time of the accident. Nodoka says her license was published

in November of last year, 6 months after the accident. Continuing with the
testimony, she says it was a new car. Shake her a bit to find out the car was
a Red Sports Car, that was made in America. It was a limited edition model.
She says she was in the passenger's seat. Show her the Newspaper Article #2
to show her contradiction.

In that paper, Nodoka said she escaped the vehicle by exiting the left side.
But on an American made car, the left side is the driver's side. (In Japan
and Europe, the driver side for a car is the right side) Nodoka was

in the driver's seat. The Judge brings order in the court after the
spectators get excited. Mei says that's absurd, Mimi Hanaka was the driver



of that car. That's right, Mimi was the driver, but you just proved Nodoka
was the driver of that car. This can mean only thing. The person sitting on
the witness stand is Mimi Hanaka! Mei disagrees, but you explain. The
witness had a picture of her younger sister, Nodoka.

When Mimi, the real survivor of the crash, was taken to the hospital, her
face was severely burned. Mimi had Reconstructive Plastic Surgery to look
like her younger sister, Nodoka! This means Nodoka was the one who really
died in that crash. Mimi, with her new look, still had unfinished business
with Dr. Tetsurou Kirisaki. Mimi suspected the doctor fed her sleeping pills,
and she believed the doctor was behind the deaths of the 14 patients earlier.
That's the motive for killing. The doctor tried to call the dead spirit of
Mimi, however, Mimi was really alive, so what would happen? Mayoi probably
would have noticed something wrong.

Mimi had to put Mayoi to sleep and kill the doctor before that could happen.
The witness admits to being Mimi. She almost succeeded in throwing away her
past life. Show the newspaper article #1, the one that blamed Mimi for the
loss of 14 patients. Mimi wanted to throw away her past and start a new

life as her younger sister. Meil Karuma gets pissed off and whips you to
unconsciousness. Mayoi's verdict: Not Guilty. Back in the waiting room,
Mayoi wonders why Kimiko agreed to this plot with Mimi. Show her the profile
of Harumi Ayasato. In 4 years, Mayoi will be the leader of the family.
Kimiko wanted Harumi to be the next leader, that's why Kimiko went along with
Mimi's plan. Mimi wanted Tetsurou dead, Kimiko wanted to frame Mayoi for the
murder. Conclusion: the real criminals are Mimi Hanaka (disguised as Nodoka)
and Kimiko Ayasato.

6c. Episode 3

Defendant: Max Galactica (Kouhei Yamada)
Victim: Naoto Tachimi

Prosecutor: Mei Karuma

Date: 12/26/17 ~ 12/30/17

Reversal Circus. Mayoi, Harumi, and you visit the Tachimi Circus the night
after Christmas. The highlight of the show was the sky flight of the
performer Maximilian Galactica, who is also a great magician. It was getting
quite late, so the group rushed to catch the train back. Two days later, at
your office, Mayoi calls you on the cell phone telling you to look at the
television. There has been a murder at the Tachimi Circus. The suspect of

the case is none other than the magician Max Galactica. You agree to meet
Mayoi at the detainment cell. Once there, Max gives you a card that you can
keep.

Max explains he helped make the Tachimi Circus as popular as it is today. He
singlehandedly revived that dying franchise. As for the case, it seems like
the circus leader was killed. Max was the last person to meet with the leader
before his death, so Max is a suspect. Max met inside the leader's room to
negotiate Max's salary. Show Max the Lawyer's Badge. You agree to be his
lawyer after he begs of you. You find out his real name is Kouheil Yamada.
Mayoi is disappointed that's a Japanese name. After that you can visit the
scene of the crime. Go to the Lodging Plaza to meet Detective Itonoko.

You learn from him that in tomorrow's court hearing, the prosecutor will be
Mei Karuma again. Itonoko is envious of you, since he gets whipped more than
you. Mayoi asks whatever happened to your rival, Reiji Mitsurugi. Itonoko
is sorry to tell the bad news, but Mitsurugi is no longer in this world. As
for the murder case, Itonoko says about 10 P.M. last night, the murder



occurred. It seems like the victim was hit in the back of the head with a
strong blow. There was one weird thing, the only footprints in the snow were
the victim's. That, and the fact that the victim was hunched over a wooden
box. It is a mystery how the criminal came in and left the scene without
leaving footprints behind.

Show Itonoko the profile of Max. He will then show you more evidence. There
was Max's Silk Hat at the scene of the crime. More bad news, there was also a
witness to the crime. Itonoko can't tell you who the witness is, since that

is the prosecutor's trump card. He then warns you not to go inside the
lodging houses. Since you need evidence, ignore him and enter Tommy's Room.
Since there is no one here, go visit the tent area. A tiger rushes toward
you, but a voice commands the tiger to stop. You meet the animal trainer,
Mirika. She says her father was the victim of the murder. Mirika then talks
about the loss of Leon, the Lion. Ever since then, Rato the Tiger has been
her only friend. Leon was killed by her father, but she won't say why.

Show her Max's profile and she will tell of how she was approached by Max
about marriage, but the same day, someone else named Riro did the same thing.
This Riro is a tenor singer. Explore the leader's room to find some documents
to see Max's salary. Take that document as evidence. This paper was signed a
week before the murder. Search the walls to get Max's Poster as evidence.
Back at the entrance, you meet Ben, the ventriloquist. However, without his
puppet, he won't talk to you. Return to Tommy's room to meet a clown who has
bad puns. He laughs at his own puns, but nobody else seems to find them
funny. He talks about the history of the circus. It has been around for over
20 years. Tommy is the witness to the murder.

That night, Tommy was about to go to bed. When he heard a loud noise, he
looked outside and saw Max. Show him Max's Poster and Tommy will reveal on
the morning of the murder, Max struck the head of Ben. Go check the

cafeteria area of the circus. Search that area to find a broken bottle. With
this amount of evidence, it's time to confront Max and his Psycho Lock. It
seems Max was negotiating with the leader, Naoto, when Naoto had some business
to take of. Max says he waited in the leader's room, but Naoto never came
back. Use Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock. Max says he was
negotiating pay with the leader that night. Show him the Leader's Documents.
The negotiations happened a week ago. One lock broken. Max says the leader
called him to meet. Why? Show the Broken Bottle as evidence.

Earlier that day, Max used that bottle and smashed it on Ben's head. Another
lock broken. Max claims that bottle was dropped, but show him Ben's profile.
Max used the bottle as a weapon against Ben. Psycho Lock successfully
unlocked. Max explains he and Ben were arguing over Mirika. Max did
something to quiet Ben. Max hid Riro, Ben's puppet. Without that puppet,
Ben won't talk. Max says he hid that puppet in the leader's room. He asks
you to return that doll to Ben. Return to the circus and search the Trophy
Case inside the leader's room. You find Riro, the puppet. Visit the
cafeteria to meet Ben. Show him Riro, then will begin talking, using the
puppet. Riro will appear in court tomorrow.

When you are about the leave the place, a monkey appears and steals your
badge. Mirika appears and says that's Luther the monkey. The monkey loves
shiny objects. Tommy knows more about the monkey. Visit Tommy once more.

Get ready for more bad puns. Despite that, he will still take you to Luther's
room. It is actually Acro's room. Search the sparkling items on the sofa to
find your badge, along with a diamond ring. Now you are ready for court.

The next day, as usual, there's Mei with her whip. She doesn't count the last
case as a loss. Now she will try to prove your guilt. That's her revenge.
Mei calls Detective Itonokogiri as her first witness. Itonoko gives the



general details of the murder.

The night of the murder, it snowed until about 9:40 P.M. Everyone was at the
Tent Area practicing their performances. Practice ended at 10 P.M. and the
murder occurred at 10:15 P.M. in front of the lodging area. The victim was
slumped over a wooden box and the cause of death was a flat, blunt object that
struck the victim in the back of the head. The resulting blow also caused a
bone fracture. Shake Itonoko to find out the contents of the wooden box.
Inside the box was a small seasoning bottle that contained pepper. Right now,
the prosecution is searching for the murder weapon. After that, Mei calls her
next witness, Ben the Ventriloquist. More precisely, Riro will do the
talking.

Riro says he saw Max pass in front of the lodging area after 10 P.M. When you
ask what Ben, or Riro was doing there, you guess he was waiting for someone,
namely Mirika. However, that's not enough to prove anything, so you say it is
strange for Riro to be the only one to see Max. Point to Naoto Tachimi, the

victim himself. After both pieces of evidence, you have to prove the witness

was waiting for Mirika, but Riro admits to that. Riro testifies about the
proposal. Shake him to find out the present was an engagement ring. Riro
says he didn't have a chance to give that ring, so he still has it. Show him

the ring and tell him that you found this ring in Acro's room. Luther the
monkey must have stolen that ring. Riro admits it was stolen that night of
the murder. After Max entered the plaza area, Riro chased the monkey, but he
couldn't catch the animal.

This proves a contradiction in the witness' statement. Riro said he didn't
move from his spot at the plaza entrance, be he was chasing the monkey.
During that time, there was nobody at the entrance. This gives a chance for
someone other than the defendant to commit the murder. Riro continues his
testimony. He says he greeted the defendant, but the Max ignored Riro. Riro
greeting Max? There is something wrong with that. Show him the broken
bottle. Earlier that day, Riro and Max were fighting over Mirika. ©Not just
arguing, but Max hit Ben in the head with a bottle. There is no way Riro
would greet Max "Good Evening' after that quarrel.

This means Riro saw someone else. Then who did Riro greet? The answer is
Naoto Tachimi, the circus leader and victim himself. The prosecution side
still believes that the defendant was the one Riro saw. You say it was the
victim dressed up like Max. Mei doesn't have proof on her side, but she's
unfazed. All she wanted to hear was that night, one person went to the plaza.
Mei presents her next witness to prove it was Max Galactica who murdered the
leader. The Judge orders a 10 minute recess. When court resumes, Mei calls
Tommy the Clown. He is the one who witnessed the murder. Tommy throws out

a bunch of puns, but no one finds them funny. Mei has to whip him into shape.

Here is the funny part. Tommy is supposed to testify about what he saw at

the murder scene. Instead he talks about his life story. Mei says to save
that talk for after the court. Mei will make her subordinate detective

listen to Tommy's story (poor Itonoko). Itonoko will have to be the laughing
role. In Tommy's testimony, he says he heard a loud noise that made him look
outside the window. That sound was the murder instant, so by the time he
looked outside, the murder was already finished. However, Tommy said he saw
Max strike the leader, but that was after he heard the loud sound. Tommy
explains when he looked at the window, the victim was already down. He didn't
see the instant the victim was struck, but he did see the criminal.

The Judge tells Tommy to testify about the person he saw, minus the humor.
Tommy says he saw all the symbols of Max, the Silk Hat and Black Cape. Show
him Max's Poster. Tommy didn't see all the symbols. He forgot the White



Rose. Tommy admits the person he saw didn't have the White Rose. Meil argues
that the White Rose could have dropped during the exchange, but you counter
that with the fact that only the Silk Hat was found at the murder scene. Riro
saw all three symbols, but Tommy only saw two symbols. How do you explain
this? The Judge says what the witness saw is 99% the defendant, but there is
1% doubt. The Judge will allow you to question the witness one more time. If
you find nothing, then the Judge will hand down the verdict.

Tommy says the person he saw wore the silk hat the whole time. Show him the
silk hat. That hat was found on the ground at the murder scene. Tommy
insists the person he saw left the place wearing the silk hat. How did the
criminal leave the scene? Tommy says the criminal walked away. You disagree,
and show the Judge the Crime Scene Photo. The picture shows that the only
footprints at the scene of the crime are the victim's. Where are the
criminal's footprints? You ask again how the criminal left the scene. Tommy
says he can't reveal that. Mei told him not to talk about it. Mei is trying
to hide something. She says that if you heard how the criminal escaped, then
then the Judge would have the same opinion as she does. Mei says don't laugh
at it.

Tommy says he saw the criminal fly away from the scene of the crime. You can
agree that Tommy's testimony is true, but it doesn't matter. The Judge orders
further investigation on the case. Court will resume tomorrow. Until then,
search the crime scene once more. Back at your office, you discuss your next
move. You decide to visit Max at the detainment cell. Max wants you to show
the circus people his Grand Prix Picture. This picture shows the award Max
received. Show Max that picture back at him, and he will say that you can
find a statue of him in the cafeteria of the circus. Back at the circus
entrance, you meet Riro. After a short conversation, visit the Lodging Area
to meek Itonoko. He says Mei Karuma is here, investigating the third floor
area where the acrobat resides.

You decide to wait until she's done, so visit the tent area. Look in the
cafeteria to find Tommy. Show him that Grand Prix photo and Tommy will talk
about the statue of the upper half of Max. That statue was here on that

small table, at least it was there five days ago. You see a picture of that
statue. The platinum cards it is holding sparkle brightly. You have an idea
who could have stolen this statue. There is something else. On the morning
of the murder, a memo was posted on the message board. It was ripped up, so
you can only read the title, “Announcement of the Murderer". Go visit Max and
show him the ripped paper. Max says that morning, the circus leader and
Mirika came into the cafeteria. The leader saw that paper posted and got mad.
He ripped it off the board and stuffed it in his pocket.

Search the leader's room, namely the black suit that you see hanging. The
note in the pocket does match the ripped paper. It reads, "Announcing the
murderer. I have the definitive evidence. Come tonight at 10 P.M. in the
Plaza in front of the Lodging Area." Rewrite your file with this evidence,
then go to the lodging area to meet Itonoko once again. Whenever you hear
that strange beeping, Mei Karuma always seems to appear. It seems that Mei
will be using Acro as her witness tomorrow. About Karuma's revenge, she never
said anything about her father. The person Mei is looking for is Reiji
Mitsurugi! Mayoi is shocked. Gou Karuma raised Reiji, so Reiji is like a
younger brother to Mei. Reiji Mitsurugi is also the reason you became a

lawyer.

After that DL#6 Case, Mitsurugi died. Mei accuses you of killing him. After
that case, Reiji stopped coming to court for a while, then he completely
disappeared. He left a memo at the prosecution office. The prosecutor

Reiji Mitsurugi chooses death. That happened about a year ago. However, Mei



doesn't believe it. She thinks Reiji is still alive somewhere in this world.
The "“Prosecutor" Reiji is dead because he lost to you. In turn that ruined
the face of Karuma. Mei wants to meet Reiji once more, to show him right from
wrong. She promises tomorrow will be the final battle and then she leaves.
Now visit the third floor area, which is Acro's room. You meet Acro, the
acrobat.

He used to be a tight-rope walker and swing artist, but now he is in a
wheelchair. About the wheelchair, you think it was the result of the
acrobatics, but then a Psycho Lock appears. You don't have enough evidence,
so you will have to come back later. As for the murder scene, Acro says he
saw Max float up past the third floor window. Now go visit Mirika at the Tent
Area. She is in trouble, since Luther stole her sparkled dress. She pleas
for you to get that dress back. You agree and take her offer. Before going,
though, show her the paper post. She says she found that letter inside her
pocket. She says she was the one who brought Acro his breakfast. Mirika
believes it is a mistake of someone to call her a murderer. She posted that

note on the message board in the cafeteria the morning of the murder.

Pay a visit to Tommy's room. Here you will find Luther the monkey. He Jjumps
you, but you manage to get Mirika dress back as he passes by. Return to the
tent area and give the Stage Costume back to Mirika. You find out that the
costume was made for Leon. That lion was killed by Mirika father, the circus
leader. The reason was an accident during practice. One of Leon's tricks was
to open his mouth and Mirika was to put her head inside that mouth. The crowd
would scream at that, but that's the point. Then one day an accident
happened. Leon chomped down. Naoto got mad and shot Leon to death. Return
to the kitchen area to find Tommy the clown. He mentions something about
"That thing". A Psycho Lock appears. Show him Mayoi's Jewel to begin the
unlock process.

You guess it has something to do with the accident a half year ago. Show him
Leon the lion. Tommy says someone forced him into not speaking about it.

Who? Show him the profile of Acro. Unlock successful. Tommy reveals that
Acro's younger brother was the victim of the lion bite. He was known as Bat,
and he had a relationship with Mirika. Tommy remembers that accident. Leon
had a funny look on it's face before biting Bat. It seemed like the lion was
smiling. Bat is in a hospital now, still unconscious. The next day, the
circus leader shot that lion to death with a rifle. Then you find out that
Mirika liked to play with pepper, especially with Bat. Go back to the
detainment cell. Max isn't there, so go back to challenge Acro's Psycho Lock.

Show him Leon as the real cause of Acro's condition. Acro was fighting the
lion, for Bat's sake. In rescuing Bat, Acro got those wounds. You suspect
Acro was 111 will toward Mirika. However, she could not have ordered the
lion to do that. Why would she kill someone she was close to? Still, you do
have proof Acro had malice toward Mirika. Show him the paper post. Mirika
posted that in the cafeteria, and Acro was the one who put that paper in
Mirika's pocket. Unlock successful. Bat made a wager. He would perform the
lion stunt in place of Mirika. If successful, they would go to the movies
together. Acro jumped at the lion when it happened, and now Acro is in a
wheelchair. Bat is still unconscious in a hospital bed. Acro then shows you
the scarf Bat was wearing. It is blood soaked, and Mirika gave this scarf to
Bat as a present.

Acro remembers Leon laughing the instant he bit his younger brother. With out
warning Mei Karuma busts into the room demanding you hand over that scarf.

You have no choice but to comply. The next day in court, as expected, Mei
calls Acro as her first witness. Acro says he saw the figure of Max pass by
the third floor window. Shake him to get him to say the figure had worn the



hat and cape. Show him the silk hat as evidence. That hat was found at the
scene of the crime. Why would Acro lie? The answer is, Acro was the real
criminal. Acro isn't fazed. He says look at him, he can't get out of the
lodging area by himself due to the wheelchair. How could he be the murderer?
Mei asks you, do you think there was an accomplice to this murder? You say
no, you believe Acro did this by himself. The crowd get excited again.

The Judge asks you to point to the area on the map that Acro was at the time
of the murder. Point to Acro (third floor), since he can't move from where
he lives. That's where Acro was when he murdered the victim. Acro shows no
emotion. Mei says you are forgetting something. The defendant was seen at
the scene of the crime. So how could Acro perform the crime? Show the
Judge the Statue of Max. That statue is pretty heavy. If that thing dropped
from the third floor, it would turn into a effective murder weapon. Meil
throws an objection, saying controlling that heavy statue in a wheelchair is
impossible. You respond by saying the witness was an acrobat, such a statue
would be easy for him to carry. Mei wants the witness to testify about his
body condition. The Judge rejects your objection.

Acro admits he could carry that statue, but it would be impossible for him to
know the location of the victim's head. Show him the wooden box. That box
was placed ahead of time at the scene of the crime. The box was used to help
locate the position of the victim. Who placed the box there? Looking at the
picture, it seems the statue struck the victim as he was trying to lift up the
box. Acro must have placed it there. All Acro had to do was tie the statue
to a rope and drop it at the location of the box. Mei whips you several times
and says in lifting the box, the head position could vary. You respond with
the box has a special property. The large size and heavy weight would cause
someone to squat down to lift it up. Anyone's head position would be near
equal!

Mei says that's absurd. Acro doesn't seem impressed. Acro says he couldn't
have put the box there. Acro asks if you remember where the statue was.
Yes, it was in the cafeteria on a table. Acro says how could he have taken
that statue? Acro can't get out of his room alone. You said there was no
accomplice. The only answer is that statue was brought to Acro's room by
Luther the monkey. That monkey loves shiny things. Max's Statue's Cards
are shiny. The monkey keeps a stash of shiny stuff in Acro's room, so Acro
just happened to find a convenient weapon without having to leave the room.
Acro said himself that Luther is capable of carrying heavy objects. The Judge
asks where is that statue right now. Mei doesn't know. Her search for the
murder weapon came up empty.

Mei then tells you that you still are forgetting something. The defendant,
Max was spotted at the murder scene. How do you explain that? Who was the
person that the clown saw? Show her Max's Statue. Mei whips you and says
she is asking who, not a piece of evidence. However, that's the point. The
Max that the clown saw was not human, it was the statue of Max! Mei says
that's ridiculous. The clown says the figure was wearing a cape. However,
the statue could have worn a cape. Who's cape? Naoto Tachimi, the victim
himself. You explain what really happened that night. Acro set the wooden
box at the scene with rope. Then he used the rope and tied it to Max's
Statue. He hung the statue outside the window, right above the box.

Meanwhile, the victim left his room, with Max staying behind. The circus
leader wore Max's costume before leaving for the lodging area. He wanted to
cover up who he really was. He was spotted at the entrance of the lodging
area by Ben and Riro. Then Naoto arrived at the scene. He tried to 1lift up
the wooden box. Acro was waiting, and at the right time, he released the
rope. Here comes the magic part. When the statue hit the victim, the silk



hat fell to the ground, but his cape latched onto the statue! Mei says
that's impossible. The resulting sound caused Tommy the clown to look
outside the window. What Tommy saw was the statue wearing the cape of the
victim.

Acro, finished with the murder, needed to recover the murder weapon. At this
point, Acro couldn't see the cape or Tommy, since he was sitting in the
wheelchair. Acro pulled the rope up. This made it look like Max flew away
from the crime scene. That's how the murder occurred. Only Acro could have
performed this feat. Acro is unimpressed. Mei asks for proof that's what
really happened. Show her the silk hat. That hat was found at the scene of
the crime. Yesterday, Tommy testified that he saw the criminal leave the
scene wearing the hat, but the hat he saw was the statue's hat! What about
the other contradiction? Ben and Riro saw the white rose on the chest of
Max. Tommy says there was no rose. When the statue hit the victim, the cape
hit the front side of the statue. That caused the white rose swing away to
the backside.

That's why Tommy didn't see the white rose. Meil is still not impressed. She
asks what is the motive for Acro to kill his respected elder? Mei wants to
hear the testimony of the relationship between the victim and Acro. The
Judge orders a short break. During the break, Max is shocked. Acro was one
of the good, honest people at the circus. It seems that Acro accidentally
framed Max for the murder. Itonoko appears and hands you the scarf that
Acro's younger brother was wearing. He says don't let Mei know about this.
The scarf has traces of pepper detected. This could be useful evidence. The
next step is to find the motive of Acro. Back in the courtroom, Acro
testifies about his relation to the victim. You don't have to question Acro,
since you do know Acro doesn't have motive to kill Naoto Tachimi.

You believe Acro was aiming for someone else. Acro ended up killing the
leader, but that wasn't the intended target. Mei asks, who was Acro trying to
kill? Show her the profile of Mirika. Mei asks for proof. Show her the
paper posted on the message board. That was found in the victim's costume.
Acro wrote that note to Mirika and placed it in her pocket when she come to
bring Acro's breakfast. Mirika didn't believe this note was meant for her, so
she posted it on the board in the cafeteria. Her father saw that note, ripped
it off, and stuffed it in his pocket the morning of the murder. Mirika was
supposed to show up at the lodging area at 10 P.M. but her father took her
place instead. Acro couldn't see the target, so he thought he killed Mirika,
but instead he got the circus leader.

Mei says that note talks about some definitive evidence. That means Mirika
was a murderer. The leader knew about that case and went to the lodging area
instead of his daughter. You know about that case from a half year ago.

Does that case have relevance to the current murder case? Yes, that case from
a half year ago was the start of it all. Then Mei asks about the definitive
evidence. What was it? Show her the seasoning bottle. That bottle contained
pepper. That bottle was found inside the wooden box. That box was found at
the scene of the crime, just like that memo said. Mei calls that absurd, she
asks who was the victim of Mirika's actions? The answer is Bat, Acro's
younger brother. Bat isn't dead, but is unconscious. To Acro, that's the
same as dead.

Mei then says, Bat was attacked by a lion, but that lion was tamed. It was an
accident. You don't believe is was accident, however. Show the scarf as
evidence. Mirika gave that scarf to Bat. Bat wore that scarf at the time of
the so called accident. However, analysis reveals that scarf had Bat's blood,
and along with it, traces of pepper. You know what happened. The pepper
laced scarf caused the lion to sneeze, causing the lion to chomp down on the



head of Bat. That explains the lion smiling. The lion was really sneezing
due to the pepper. Acro lost his brother to that silly accident. Acro found
out about the pepper laced scarf. That's why Acro plotted to kill Mirika,
since she was the one who gave that scarf to Bat.

After all this, Acro is still unfazed. There is still one big question
remaining. Where is the murder weapon? You claim that the Max Statue was
used as the murder weapon, but where is that piece of evidence? Just wait and
watch. Mei says the prosecution has already performed a household search of
Acro's room yesterday. No murder weapon was found. The whereabouts of the
weapon is still unknown. You fell a step short. Wait a second! Mayoi says
they can prove where the statue is. You say the murder weapon is somewhere in
this very courtroom! More precisely, in the witness' chair! The only place
Acro could hide the murder weapon was in his wheelchair. Mei can't believe
it.

Acro admits to the murder. He burned the cape and trashed it. Mirika takes
out the trash in his room every morning. Acro had to quickly hid the statue
since Mei Karuma requested a search of the room without warning. The only
place he could hide the weapon was under the wheelchair. Now Mei regrets
doing that search. Max Galactica's verdict: Not Guilty. As for the circus,
Tommy will be the new leader. Max agrees to the plan. They shall make the
world's best circus. Mirika is afraid Acro could aim for her again, but show
her Bat's profile to calm her down. In the end, you hear Itonoko speaking to
Reiji Mitsurugi over the phone. Mitsurugi is at an airport looking at a
newspaper article on Mei Karuma. Reiji tells Itonoko that he will be
arriving over there shortly. To be continued in the next episode.
Conclusion: The real criminal is Acro.

6d. Episode 4, Day 1

Defendant: Shingo Outorou

Victim: Isao Fujimino

Prosecutor: Mei Karuma (supposed to be)
Date: 03/20/18 ~ 03/23/18

Farewell, Reversal. The chapter opens with the Grand Prix of the All Japan
Hero of Heroes. The winner of the third annual Grand Prix is Tonosaman' Hei!
(the third Tonosaman') His rival, Ninja Nanja failed to win again. You,
Mayoi, and Harumi are in the new Bandou Hotel enjoying the festivities. You
also see Saburou Niboshi, the former actor of Tonosaman'. Harumi suggests you
should have the same interests as your lover (Mayoil is a Tonosaman' fan).
Mayoi scolds Harumi for saying that. As for the awards, Niboshi feels sorry
for the Ninja Nanja, since the ninja has lost two years straight. Mayoi
noticed something strange. The ninja didn't have his trademark red guitar
with him. Head to the lobby to hear a confession by the Tonosaman'. You
still have 20 minutes, so talk to some of the people to kill time.

Niboshi mentions that his Himesaman' safely ended last month. Right now he is
doing children's shows. The current actor of Tonosaman' Hei is Shingo
Outorou. You learn Tonosaman' Hei and Ninja Nanja are rivals, since they
share the same time slot on television. Go to the hallway of the waiting

room to kill some more time. Go back to meet Saburou, and the Attraction Show
will be starting soon. Saburou will give you a numbered ticket to the press
conference. Move to the hotel lobby to see the confession by the Tonosaman'.
However, an announcement is made that the show will be canceled due to
circumstances. The police request that you stay where you are. Then a person
in a space suit shows up and begins the machine gun talk.



It is the old woman from the first game. She doesn't know the details, but
it looks like we have another case in our hands. Mayoi wants to search out,
so you agree. Back to the dinner hall, a Hotel Boy approaches Mayoi and says
there is a telephone call for her. Come to the front to receive it. Visit
the hallway to find the camera woman Natsumi arguing with Itonoko. As you
might have guessed, there has been a murder here. Itonoko forbids passage
into the area. He mentions it looks like Tonosaman' was the killer. The
actor for Ninja Nanja was the victim. The victim's name is Isao Fujimino.
Show Itonoko the profile of Shingo Outorou, and he will say Shingo has been
arrested as a suspect in the case.

Go back to the hotel lobby to find Saburou. You inform him of the news.
Saburou then gives you a transceiver. The hotel boy asked for you to have it.
Talking to Saburou, he says Outorou and Fujimino were rivals, but Outorou
always seemed to win by the smallest margin. Suddenly your transceiver

rings. The voice on the other end has taken Mayoi hostage! The voice

demands an exchange for the hostage. Mayoi has been abducted. You ask how
much he wants. The voice says his demand is not money. He wants a not guilty
verdict. ©Not for him, but you will be the lawyer for the suspect of the Isao
Fujimino murder, the suspect being Shingo Outorou. The voice promises Shingo
didn't kill anyone. Shingo was framed. Remember that he has Mayoi in his

possession. If you don't follow his orders, Mayoi is dead.

You have two days to get that verdict, and you have only one chance to get it.
The voice also warns you not to talk to the police. You ask who is speaking,
but he cuts off before you get an answer. You and Harumi inform Itonoko about
the Mayoi kidnapping. The trade bargain is a not guilty verdict for Shingo
Outorou. Itonoko tells you that means Outorou is the real criminal! Why
would someone kidnap if the suspect is completely innocent? Itonoko mentions
that there is too much evidence at the scene of the crime. That's what makes
the crime suspicious. The scene switches to Mayoi's point of view. It seems
like she's in a dark wine cellar. Mayoi sees the hit man known as Koroshiya.

Mayoi's only hope is you.

The next morning, you and Harumi discuss what to do next. You decide to meet
the client, Shingo Outorou in the detainment cell. Show him the lawyer's
badge, ticket to the press conference and the transceiver. When you mention
the name Koroshiya, he allows you to be his lawyer. Shingo says he was
sleeping in his room at the time of the murder. He was alone, but his manager
was pretty busy too. That's weird, Tonosaman' was supposed to have a
confession after the award ceremony, but it seems Shingo doesn't know a thing
about it. Shingo has no reason to kill Isao, since his Tonosaman' was
victorious over the victim's Ninja Nanja. When Itonoko searched Shingo's
body, he found a button of the Ninja Nanja's on Shingo. Harumi asks one last
thing. Do you believe the client is completely innocent?

Harumi says you can find out by using Mayoi's Jewel. You ask Shingo if he
killed Isao. Shingo says he didn't kill Isao or anyone. No Psycho Lock
appears, so he isn't hiding anything. You agree to be his lawyer. A few
hours later, you return to the Bandou Hotel. At the lobby, you meet the old
woman, Kaoru Ooba. She is shocked that the Tonosaman' is the suspect once
again. She is a big Isao fan. It seems Kaoru got some information from
Natsumi. Kaoru says she witnessed something, but a gquadruple Psycho Lock
appears. Time to gather more evidence. In the hallway in front of the
waiting room, you meet Natsumi. She says she lost her expensive camera last
night. You ask what kind of picture she took with that camera, and she says
she doesn't remember. It wasn't the scoop she was looking for, however.

As for Natsumi, she was wandering around this place before the award ceremony
started. She was here until Outorou got arrested. Natsumi was looking for a



great picture, but before you know it, a Psycho Lock appears. We'll save this
for later. Enter Outorou's room. Here you meet Kirio Kamiya. She says she
was having a meal with Outorou in this room before the award ceremony.
Afterward, she was in the lobby area preparing the award commemoration show.
When time came, she called Outorou. When she peeked into Isao's room, she
found his dead body. Kirio then explains she is Outorou's manager, and the
victim Isao Fujimino had no manager. Show her Isao's profile and she will act
like she knows something about the motive of the killer. Once again the
Psycho Lock appears. Is it getting heavy for you? If you have been counting,
three people have Psycho Locks right now. Don't worry about Kirio's lock,
that will be opened later.

We still need more evidence, so visit Fujimino's room. Itonoko will appear
and ask, what's the status on Mayoi's kidnapper? You haven't heard from the
kidnapper yet. Itonoko will let you search the place, even though he is not
supposed to let you. He gives you a map of the hotel as evidence. Talking
with him, Itonoko hasn't viewed the official autopsy records, so he doesn't
know the cause of death yet. However, looking at the murder scene, it can be
guessed. He shows a picture of the victim with a knife stabbed in the chest.
That looks like the murder weapon. Right now experts are searching the
fingerprints on that knife. It looks to be the suspect Outorou's fingerprints
on that knife. TItonoko gives you that picture for you to file. Itonoko
arrested Outorou, the reason being the crime scene showed signs of a struggle.
There is a broken vase on the floor, scattered cosmetics and an open guitar

case.

The struggle must have caused Isao's button to tear off. That button was found
on the suspect. There's more. There is a witness to the crime. The old

woman saw what happened. Itonoko mentions that there was something strange
about the murder scene. Look for yourself. There is a guitar case open on

the floor. Upon closer inspection, you find only the 1lid is wet, but the
inside is dry. Search the dresser with the mirror to find a wine glass filled
with tomato juice. It's strange the flower vase and cosmetics are shattered

on the floor, but the wine glass is disturbingly in one piece. Take the glass
as evidence and show it to Itonoko. He agrees how strange that glass was fine

while everything else was disturbed.

Actually it was the prosecutor Karuma who pointed that out. What? Mei Karuma
is here? TItonoko says yes. He warns you don't meet up with her if you can
help it. Itonoko has been whipped by Mei countless times. Beep beep...
Uh-oh. Mei is coming. When this noise is played, Mei always appears.
Itonoko tries to run, but Mei whips him down to the floor. She calls you a
cheat for trying to steal prosecution evidence. She is saddened by the low
morals of the detectives in this country. Itonoko gets a real whipping by
Mei this time. Because of you, her perfect history in now covered in mud.
You realize Mei always talks about winning against you. Tomorrow, she will
put the Karuma Family's pride on the line and finish the battle. Then she
throws a signed paper on the table and leaves.

The paper is an autograph of Isao. It's addressed to Kaoru chan. With this
piece of evidence, you are ready to tackle the first Psycho Lock. Go back to
the hotel lobby to meet the old woman. Before that, you meet Saburou in the
banquet room. He mentions how the Tonosaman' and Ninja Nanja programs both
air every week at 8:00 A.M. Sundays. Show him the profile of Kirio Kamiya.
Saburou will tell you about a rumor he heard about her. He shows you a
magazine article. It talks about the Ninja Nanja's secret meeting at night.
He met the manager K.K. Isao has no manager. K.K. could mean Kirio Kamiya.
She is Tonosaman's manager, but she met with Tonosaman's rival. That could
be scandalous material. Take that magazine article as evidence, then go to
the lobby to meet the old woman. Show her Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho



Lock.

Here is the most hilarious Psycho Lock in the whole game. Show the old woman
want she wants, the colored paper with Isao's signature on it. That paper is
addressed to her personally. You give her the signature as all four Psycho
Locks break open at once. All she wanted was that signed paper. She tells
you she witnessed someone leaving Isao's room 10 minutes before the body was
found. Kaoru will probably be a witness tomorrow in court. She claims
Outorou knew about the Isao scandal. Outorou used his manager, Kirio to
seduce Isao. This would make Isao lose his standing. How does Kaoru know
this? Look at next week's magazine that's going to be published. Go back to
the waiting room area to find Natsumi. It's time to break her Psycho Lock.

You guess Natsumi was waiting in this area for a scoop. The scandal between
Isao and who? Kirio Kamiya. Natsumi then says show her the basis for your
information. Show her the magazine article. The article mentions a K.K. The
initials of Kirio Kamiya. Natsumi saw that article and hoped to get a picture
of that scandal. Unlock successful. Talk to her about the scoop. The masses
don't want a K.K. They want hard evidence who it really is. That's why she
wanted to get a picture to verify it really is Kirio. However, Natsumi's
camera got stolen, so she's depressed. Her gossip memo was also in that
camera case. Now visit the Police Department, Detective Division. Itonoko
just got done with the investigation meeting.

He doesn't look too optimistic. The evidence and testimony all point to
Outorou as guilty as can be. The two perfect pieces of evidence are the
missing button from the victim and the knife that was found in the chest of
the victim. That knife has the fingerprints of Shingo Outorou. As for the
perfect testimony, the guard, Kaoru. She saw the suspect Outorou leave the
crime scene about the estimated time of death. Show Itonoko the magazine

article. Itonoko will mention the suicide of one woman two years ago. Her
name is Yurie Amano. She was Isao's manager, and she was Kirio's senior
manager. Before Itonoko can finish his story, Mei Karuma knocks him out.

She tells Itonoko to get lost in 30 minutes, or else it's his head. Mei calls
Itonoko a traitor for helping you.

If it weren't for that... Then a familiar voice finishes that sentence,

"...I wouldn't have lost. That's what you wanted to say?' The voice is Reiji
Mitsurugi, the former prosecutor! He says Mei has changed. She is surprised
there is no shame for him showing up now. Reiji ruined the Karuma name, on
top of that, he ran away with this tail tucked between his legs. Reiji tells
Mei she looks to be having a hard time in this country. Mei says this case is
hers, she's not giving it away. She wants to show the loser Mitsurugi what
victory is all about. Talk to Reiji and he will mention it has been a year
since you last met. Mitsurugi has no plans to appear in court as long as Mei
is still there. He says you cannot win alone tomorrow in court.

What Mitsurugi has that you lack - organization and the skill to dig for the
truth. Reiji than says Gou Karuma was his mentor. Perfect victory is the
proof of a Karuma. A year ago, the two cases in which Gou couldn't prove
Mitsurugi guilt. That why Mitsurugi left the prosecution office.

Mitsurugi's perfect victory was lost. It would have been better for him not
to come back. Then Reiji asks why do you stand in court? For the benefit of
your clients. To save your clients? Mitsurugili says you are misunderstanding
something. The time will come when you will know what he is talking about.
Show Mitsurugi the profile of Yurie Amano. He will say that's right, she is
the key to this case.

Her suicide has one mystery remaining. The writings she left behind. Those
were never found. The police believe someone hid those writings. On Yurie's



right hand, there were ink marks found in traces. The chances she left behind
writings are extremely high. Who hide those notes? The police suspect Isao

Fujimino hid them. He was the one who found the body of Yurie. He would be
the prime candidate for hiding those writings. Mitsurugi gives you the first
report on the suicide. Yes, that means there were two suicide attempts. Show

him the first report and he will give you the second one. The second
attempted suicide failed. The person who attempted it was Kirio Kamiya!
Kirio's secret is that she depends on something. Dependence. That's the key
word for Kirio Kamiya. Kirio attempted suicide a few days after the suicide
of Yurie. Kirio depended on Yurie. With Yurie gone, Kirio lost confidence in

life. Kirio attempted suicide, but failed. She was put into counseling.

Kirio is searching for a person she can trust from the heart. She blindly
obeys by them. Without that, she is unstable. That's her dependence. Her
confident attitude is just a facade. All a lie. With this evidence it's time
to capture Kirio's Psycho Lock. Go back to Outorou's room in the hotel. You
find Mei Karuma here. Mei is giving instructions to Kirio on how to perform
in court. Kirio will now depend on Mei. After that, Mei will show you her
electro-magnetic wave receiver. She placed a transmitter on Itonoko. With
this, she knows the whereabouts of Itonoko at all times. Now show Kirio
Mayoi's Jewel to begin the Psycho Lock. Kirio says she isn't intimate with
anyone. Show her the magazine article. She says honest people wouldn't
believe that third rate gossip magazine. The reason she approached Isao is
who?

Show her the profile of Yurie Amano. One unlocked. She says there was no
mystery to Yurie's suicide, but you show her the suicide report of Yurie.

Her writings have never been found. Isao is suspected to have hidden those
notes. That's why Kirio approached Isao. The second lock breaks. You have
proof Yurie was special to Kirio. Show her the attempted suicide report.
Kirio attempted suicide a few days after Yurie's suicide. The person Kirio
depended on died. Kirio didn't want to live anymore after that. The third
lock is gone. Back to the reason of the Isao murder, Kirio now becomes a
suspect. She could have killed Isao in trying to find the writings of Yurie.
Psycho Lock unlock successful! She admits to her weakness, her dependence on
someone. She didn't want anyone to know. Kirio approached Isao in hopes of
finding those writings. However, she says she wouldn't kill for such things.
She tells you to keep her suicide attempt a secret between just the two of

you.

You agree to keep it a secret. Harumi tells you she noticed that Kirio has
been flipping around a strange card. Kirio can't remember where she got that

card. It's a card of a turban shell. You decide you have enough evidence for
court tomorrow. Return to your office. Kirio is a suspect, but before you
can think, the transceiver rings. It's the kidnapper. He promises he hasn't

touched Mayoi, but she does look to be starved. He suggests you hurry and get
that not guilty verdict. Mayoi screams into the transceiver to get the help
of her sister. Then Chihiro's spirit overtakes Harumi's body. Chihiro says
Mayoi is fine and the kidnapper kept his promise. Mayoi called Chihiro
shortly after she was abducted.

It looks like he used the hotel phone to lure Mayoi away from you and he used
sleeping pills to catch her. All Chihiro knows is that Mayoi is in some dark
place. The scene switches to Mayoi's point of view. As Mayoi, search the
ground to find a card. It looks strikingly similar to the card Kirio was
holding. Naturally, Mayoi doesn't know that. Search the door and Mayoi will
use that card to unlock the door. The scene switches back to your point of
view. The next day in court, Chihiro appears inside of Harumi to assist you.
Then the kidnapper calls you. He says he will help you out by giving you an
advantage. He has a present for you. When court begins, you will see what



he is talking about.

When 10 A.M. rolls around, something is strange. Meil Karuma is not in the
prosecutor's seat. The court official informs the Judge that this morning,
Mei was taken out with a sniper's bullet. This is the kidnapper's present
that will help you win the case. Mei is now in the hospital, ironically

with a bullet in her right shoulder, just like her father Gou Karuma! Then
Reiji Mitsurugi appears and agrees to be the new prosecutor for the case.
Mitsurugi has been briefed on the details, so he's ready. The prosecution
will prove the guilt of Shingo Outorou. Mitsurugi tells you about the answer

he discovered after traveling for a year. When this case is over, you will

know too.
Mitsurugi's first witness is Detective Itonoko. When this case is over,
Itonoko will resign from the police force. Itonoko will give the overview of

the murder scene. The murder happened after the award ceremony. The victim,
Isao Fujimino, was found in his room. The cause of death took some time, but
it was a murder. The strange part was the open guitar case, but later on he
decided that guitar case had nothing to do with the murder. Shake him at the
part where the murder took some time. Looking at the picture, a pro will
notice the muffler around the neck. The real cause of the murder was
strangulation of the neck. Afterwards, the knife was stabbing in the chest.
Take the autopsy record as evidence. Shake him at the guitar case part to
reveal the fact that only the victim's fingerprints were found on that case.

Update your records, then Mitsurugi will recap what happened. The victim was
strangled to death with a muffler, then was stabbed with a knife. Next step
is, why did the police arrest Outorou? Itonoko testifies that the motive is
that the suspect and victim were rivals who got in the way of each other. As
for the evidence, Ninja Nanja's button was torn off the victim's costume.

That button was found on the suspect's clothes. That and the knife had the
suspect's fingerprints on them. Itonoko concludes that the knife was bought
in preparation for a planned murder. About the part of the bought knife, show
him that knife. On the handle, the name Bandou is engraved. This knife was
not bought, but it was from the hotel. It wasn't a planned murder.

Mitsurugi isn't impressed. Yes that knife may be from the hotel, but where
was that knife found? 1In Isao's room, but that's not the point. Look at the
victim's meal plate. The knife and fork are there. On the other hand, look
at the suspect plate in his room. Only the fork is there, but the knife is
missing from the meal plate. In searching the fingerprints of the remaining
utensils, Outorou's knife was the missing piece. So this murder was planned.
Mitsurugi says there is no need for this trial to go any longer, unless the
lawyer side has some hard evidence to present. There is one piece of evidence
you feel needs to be examined further. The Judge gives you one chance. Pick
the wrong evidence, and it's game over.

Show him the Glass. The victim and murderer struggled at the scene. The
flower vase and cosmetics were scattered on the floor, but the glass was
untouched, sitting on the dresser. Mitsurugi says that glass has no meaning.
Someone could have put that glass there after the murder. An example would be
Kirio Kamiya. You ask to show proof of that statement. Mitsurugi doesn't
need to. He searched out the fingerprints of that glass. The prints of the
Kirio Kamiya were found on that glass. She was the discoverer of the dead
body of Isao. She held that glass, then peeked into the victim's room.
Shocked at the sight of the dead body, she put the glass down on the dresser.
Mitsurugi says for the past year, he thought real hard about what is a

prosecutor? You shall see the answer right now.

He now has a new testimony to present. His next witness is Kaoru, the old



woman. What is Mitsurugi doing? He has enough evidence to get a guilty
verdict. You notice the Mitsurugi standing here now is different than the one
you fought one year ago. Since the witness was wearing a helmet, he didn't
recognize it was her. Kaoru was the one witness Mitsurugi didn't want to see.
Mitsurugili wants to hear what she saw the night of the murder. The old woman
says while wandering about near Isao's room, she saw Outorou leave Isao's
room. Shake her on what the person was wearing and she will add to her
testimony that Outorou was wearing his bike suit. Show the Ninja Nanja's
button to her. That button was found on the suspect Outorou's clothes, but he
was dressed up in the Tonosaman' suit, not in his bike suit. Continuing with
the testimony, she says it was the Tonosaman'. He was wearing that suit the
time he stabbed Isao. Show her that knife. It has the suspect's fingerprints
on them.

If the suspect was wearing the Tonosaman' suit, no fingerprints would be left
on that knife. Objection! Mitsurugi says if the person took his gloves off,
then there would be prints on that knife. Why would he do that? Mitsurugi
says the suspect went to the victim's room wearing the suit. During this
time, there was no murderous intentions. They were meeting for the award
commemoration. The suspect took off the Tonosaman' suit, then the murder
happened. What do you think? You say there a contradiction in that
statement. Show him the knife. Outorou used it to eat a meal. If Outorou
was the killer, he would have brought that knife over to the crime scene.

But Mitsurugi says the suspect didn't have murderous intentions at first. If
that's true, then Outorou wouldn't bring the knife over in the first place!
If the criminal wore the Tonosaman' suit, glove marks would be on the knife.

The knife is a false piece of evidence disguised by the real murderer! The
reason for doing so was to place the blame on Outorou. You ask the old woman
if she was waiting for Kamiya Kirio to come out of that room. She admits that
is secret information. Kaoru talks about that scandal, but no one else knows
about it. Shake her and ask where she got that information. You have an
idea. Show her Natsumi's Camera. Natsumi lost her camera, an along with it,
her memo. Kaoru must have found that memo that explains the scandal between
the victim and the suspect's manager. Probe deeper and the old woman will
says she only took the memo. Show her the camera once again. She took the
camera as well. She pulls out the camera for you to see.

The Judge orders the contents of the camera to be checked immediately. The
result is one useful picture. It's a picture of Tonosaman' leaving the crime
scene. The suspect did say he didn't remove his Tonosaman' suit until the
arrest. Mitsurugi says the person in the picture is the suspect. You have an
objection. Point to the feet area of the Tonosaman'. The person in the suit
cannot be Shingo Outorou! The cuffs are sagged, meaning the person inside is
smaller that the suit it was originally designed for. Mitsurugi isn't taking
any damage and calmly has his arms crossed and his right index finger tapping
on his shoulder. He explains the person in the picture doesn't look to be the
suspect, so who is the person in that picture?

Show him the profile of Kirio Kamiya. Her height is shorter than the
suspect's, and she had the free will to enter and exit the place. It would
have been easy for her to get the knife with the suspect's fingerprints on
it. The lawyer side declares Kamiya Kirio as a suspect. She was the one
framed Outorou. The Judge orders her to take the stand. However, Chihiro
reminds you that it could take more day. Remember Mayoi and the kidnapper?
His demand to get the not guilty verdict in one day is in jeopardy. You
object and ask for court to continue. Mitsurugi allows you to do so. He
knew you would indict Kirio, so he has her prepared in the waiting room,
ready to take the stand. She was going to be the next witness anyway.



The Judge allows court to continue, but first a 10 minute break. When court
resumes, Kirio takes the stand. Mitsurugi asks for her testimony of what she
did when she found the dead body. When she put the glass down on the dresser,
shake her to reveal she accidentally knocked over the flower vase onto the
guitar case. Show her that guitar case. Only the 1lid of that case was wet.
If what Kirio says is true, dropping the vase of the guitar case, then the
inside of the case should wet also! Look at the picture of the crime scene.
The guitar case is open. It what Kirio says is true, then that must mean the
guitar case was closed when she dropped the vase onto that case. You ask for
a more detailed testimony on that guitar case.

She says she opened that case, but there was nothing to be found. Show her
the guitar case once more. That case only had the fingerprints of the victim.
Kirio explains she had gloves on during that time. That's impossible. TIf she
did wear gloves at the scene, then why are her fingerprints on the glass of
tomato juice? In consulting with Chihiro, she wonders if the guitar case was
really empty. Chihiro says a red guitar is not the only thing that could fit
inside. Mitsurugi objects, and says that's what you always do. Go in the
wrong direction not related to the murder case. You disagree and say the
guitar case is relevant to the murder. Mitsurugi ask that you explain why
that guitar case was opened. You say the guitar case wasn't empty.

Show him the Tonosaman' Hei picture or Natsumi's picture. The contents of the
guitar case was the Tonosaman' suit. Kirio took the suit, and used it to help
escape the scene of the crime. Mitsurugi says the Tonosaman' suit was Shingo
Outorou's. Why would that be in the victim's room? You explain another suit
was prepared. That means Isao brought a second suit in, but he is the actor
for Ninja Nanja. You explain by showing the ticket to the press conference.
The Tonosaman' was going to make a confession that night of the murder.
Outorou didn't know about that confession. So that means the victim was going
to dress in the Tonosaman' suit and make the confession. That's why he
prepared a second Tonosaman' suit! Isao was going to talk something about
Outorou.

Mitsurugi says that's not a confession, that's an indictment! Kirio says you
are right, Isao Fujimino did set up that conference. Kirio help make

the arrangements, and she prepared the second Tonosaman' suit. If Isao's
Ninja Nanja didn't win an award this year, the victim planned to overthrow
Outorou in that manner. Isao knew some secret of Outorou that he planned to
reveal to the public, but he was killed before he could do so. Kirio doesn't
know what that secret was. Only the victim knew. Then Kirio testifies on why
she tried to protect Outorou. Shake her a bit to get her to say the button
was torn off while Outorou and the victim were fighting hand to hand. Show
her the Isao Fujimino Autopsy Report. The cause of death was strangulation by
a muffler. The knife was stabbed after he was already dead. The button has
the victim's blood on it. That means the button was taken out after being
stabbed, not during the fight.

Mitsurugi asks, how does that change things? The purpose of pulling the
button out after the death of the victim was to pin the crime on someone else,
namely Outorou. The person who is the real criminal is Kirio Kamiya. Kirio
refuses to testify. Right now she is dependant on Mei. Yesterday, Mei told
Kirio if Kirio gets in trouble, then she can refuse testimony. Any testimony
that could make you guilty can be refused. Mitsurugi says do you have
definitive evidence Kirio killed Isao? Kirio refused testimony, but the Judge
says that's the same as admitting guilt. The Judge decides to extend the
court session for another day. Court will reconvene tomorrow. The problem

is, you don't have tomorrow. The Judge rejects your objections.

Then Mitsurugi throws an objection just before the Judge pounds the hammer.



Mitsurugi decides to hear a testimony that won't put Kirio as the murderer.
When the body was found, Kirio poured juice into the glass. Mitsurugi says
that's unnatural. He wants to hear her testimony on that. Chihiro admits

she can't read Mitsurugi. Is he a friend of foe? Kirio says when she first
saw the body, she didn't think he was dead. She thought he fainted. Show her
the crime scene picture. The victim should look dead, especially when there

is a knife in the chest! Kirio still insists she didn't kill the victim. You
wonder if you really did reach the truth. Kirio still refuses testimony.
Before the Judge can hand the verdict, Mitsurugi objects. It's too early for

a verdict. The witness still hasn't told the whole truth in her testimony.

If she stays silent, Outorou will be not guilty, and she will be guilty for
the crime. Kirio says if she talks, Outorou would not be guilty, that's what
Mei told her. You decide to extort a testimony from her. This gives
Mitsurugi no choice, he has to tell about Kirio's sickness. One that almost
cost her life due to the suicide attempt. Kirio tells him to stop.

Mitsurugi doesn't care if the witness choose death. He will pull the truth
out of her, one way or the other. Kirio decides to talk. She testifies that
at first, she really did think the victim just fainted. When she found out he
was dead, she had a plan. She returned to the dressing room, making sure
there was no one in the hallway. Kirio took the knife, and stabbed it in the
corpse. She then pulled the button off the corpse. On the return trip, there
was some trouble, so she had to borrow the Tonosaman' suit to make her escape.

She did this to pin the crime on someone else, Outorou. Kirio didn't kill,
the body was already dead. All she did was pin the crime on Outorou. You
question her just be shaking her. The Judge ends court for the day. The

not guilty verdict hasn't been read yet. What will happen to Mayoi? You
hang your head in your arms. The courtroom is empty except for you, Chihiro,
Mitsurugili and Kirio. Mitsurugi asks Kirio about the card she is holding.

It's a card of a turban shell. She says she got that card at the crime scene,
right next to the body of the victim. Then Mitsurugi's face turns pale. He
asks for a closer look at that card.

6e. Episode 4, Day 2

Back at your office, you meet Itonoko. Talk to him to find out he was fired
from his job as a police detective. So he wants to help you out. You agree
to let him stay here. TItonoko will mention that Mei Karuma was shot this
morning. She's in the hospital now, but it's not life threatening. That
bullet is probably taken out by now. Itonoko says if you do go see her, take
the whip and smack her with it. You decide against that idea, since that's
not your style. The place is Hotta Clinic, the same hospital from the second
episode. Visit there to meet the doctor. Mitsurugi comes in and asks about
Mei's condition. Mei then appears and says she could have been in court
today. You confront her on her dealings with Kirio. To get a sure guilty
verdict, Mei made Kirio deny testimony. Mei says you are lucky. If she were
in court today, the case would already be over.

Talk with Mitsurugi to find out that the court is a place for judgment. He
stands there with his life on the line. That's what the witness seeks also.
As for the card Kirio had, Mitsurugi says it's top secret, classified
information. Don't tell anyone about this. The special investigation
division has been following this lead for years, but the identity is unknown
to most people. The owner of that card is Sazaemon Koroshiya, a Professional
Hit Man. Koroshiya comes from a long line of killers. The first one appeared
over 100 years ago. Sazaemon is the third generation successor to the
Koroshiya name. Sazaemon, that's the reason for the sazae card. That's his
trademark card that he leaves behind every killing.



Why does he do that? Most likely as an obligation to his clients. When he
leaves that card behind, the clients know it was Sazaemon who did the killing.
This prevents his clients from being suspects. The Koroshiya family builds
trust on his clients. You decide to tell about the Mayoi abduction to
Mitsurugi. When you tell him the kidnapper's demands is a not guilty verdict
for Outorou, Mitsurugi tells you Sazaemon Koroshiya was the one who killed
Isao Fujimino. The one who requested that murder was Shingo Outorou, your
client! Mitsurugi gives you a introduction letter. With this, you should be
able to enter the hotel to continue your search. Now the scene shifts to
Mayoi's point of view. Mayoi has that sazae card, meaning Sazaemon Koroshiya
was the one who kidnapped Mayoi.

Mayoi opens the door with that card. She finds herself in a dark room. The
room has a big screen T.V., a satellite dish, a video deck, a personal
computer, a picture, and a small stuffed doll on the sofa. There looks to be
a pet door on the opposite side of the room. After searching around for a
while, the kidnapper appears and informs her that her lawyer failed today. He
is the hit man, dressed in the uniform of the hotel boy. He has one glass
over the left eye and stitches down the center of his face. Back to your
point of view, you visit the detainment cell. Outorou has a message for you.
He wants you to take care of his pet cat, Shuu. He gives you directions to
the house. Visit the hotel lobby to find the path to his house. It's more of
a mansion. It's dark so you flip the lights on.

You find the cat, but then a butler steps in. He has a glass on his left eye
and a stitch down the middle of his face. Tarou Tanaka is the name. He says
he has been here for over a year. He doesn't say much else. One thing you
notice about the room is that there is a pet door on the door on the other
side, but it is locked. Back at the hotel, show the old woman the invitation
letter pass of Mitsurugi. She will let you pass. She tells you not to go
into Outorou's room. The investigation group is using that room for the day.
In the area in front of Isao's room, you meet Natsumi once again. After
talking a bit, she says she will watch the court hearings tomorrow. Enter the
scene of the crime once more. Talk to the old woman there to find out more
about Isao.

See those presents of stuffed animals? A lot of fans sent that over here.
The strange thing is that there are all bears. Suddenly, one of those bears
starts ringing. It tells the current time, which is 8 P.M. Wait, 8 P.M.,
that's the time the award ceremony was ending. Then the transceiver rings.
The kidnapper knows about the trial this morning. You plea for one more day.
The kidnapper agrees. During the conversation, some static noise interferes
with the call. You decide you need to see someone who knows more about
machinery. Is this thing broken? Return to your office to consult with
Itonoko. Show him the transceiver and explain the static noise you had while
speaking with the kidnapper. You turn the transceiver on, but it seems fine
right now.

Itonoko guesses it is electro-magnetic interference. That's what caused the
static noise. 1It's like when a cell phone rings next to a PC. The display
gets distorted. That room you were in, it must be sending some strong
electro-magnetic waves, for example, a wiretap! The room was the scene of

the crime, Isao's room. Itonoko will attempt to sneak inside the police
office to steal a wave detector. Meet at the crime scene. Go back to the
hotel and go to the meeting place. Itonoko had to bring his own homemade

detector. It was built during his elementary school years, so it's a little
ragged. You can't set the frequency, so it's going to pick up all sorts of
objects. You will have to find the wiretap hidden somewhere in this room.



The detector will beep faster the closer you are to a source of electro-
magnetic waves. When you get close, the detector should turn red. Press

the A button to search out the origin. Look in the left side of the room.
Move the detector on the giant bear's eye and press A. Itonoko will dig

out the bear's eye despite Harumi's protest. He finds a miniature camera,
probably used to spy on the victim. He also finds the transmitter and timer.
This camera is a pinhole type, CCD camera. It is a high powered tiny video
camera used for spying. It is battery powered. What about the video tape?
The tape recorder must be elsewhere. The transmitter sends the video data

from the camera.

It's like a wiretap, but a video version. The timer determines when the
camera is running. It's set from 8 P.M. to run for one hour. The victim
was murdered at 8:15 P.M., so the camera may have caught the actual murder
on tape! It looks like it activates every night. The bear was there the
time of the murder. The angle of the bear faces the crime scene. The bear
doll was sent here as a false gift. Itonoko has no clue who could have
sent that doll, but someone recorded the events in this room. The
transmission can be received just about anywhere. Itonoko wants to borrow
that camera. He will go around all the electronic shops to see if he can
find out who bought this camera. You tell him it's almost 9 P.M. He

doesn't care, he wants to help out anyway he can.

Then Mitsurugi comes in and says he's sorry, but he overheard your
conversation. Mitsurugi has prepared the search the search team to find
Mayoi, but they don't have a lead yet. Mitsurugi says you're lucky. He
knows the brand of that bear. That's an expensive brand made overseas. It's
all handmade, and only a few were shipped to Japan. It would be easy to
trace the route of the bear. Let Mitsurugi handle this. Mitsurugi tells you
to search out who killed Isao by tomorrow. You must find that answer by

tonight. It is now just after 9 P.M. Consult with Harumi. The true murderer
of Isao was Sazaemon Koroshiya. Then who requested for hit man's services?
A person who requests a murder is a murderer themselves. Do you really think

Kirio hired that hit man? If she did, why would she stab a knife in the dead
body? Then the only logical conclusion is that Shingo Outorou, your client

is the one who hired that hit man. That means Outorou is guilty.

Outorou said he didn't kill anyone. Although that may be true, if he did

hire a hit man, that's conspiracy to kill. 1Isao knew a secret of Outorou's.
One that could ruin Outorou's career. This gives Outorou motive to kill. As
you make your way out of the hotel, you see that Mitsurugi has ordered the
entire hotel searched for any wiretap. Meet the old woman at the banquet
area. She says that Isao's manager, Yurie Amano was going to get married.

She killed herself three days after the wedding announcement. Why did she
commit suicide? Kaoru thinks Yurie was thrown away by Isao. Three days after
the announcement, Isao backed out of the marriage for some reason. That night,
Yurie killed herself. Visit the detainment cell to find it empty. Go to the
police office and the police chief will inform you they found a witness.

Mitsurugi gave a message that you can meet the suspects in the detainment
cell, for a special purpose. Go and talk to Shingo Outorou first. About
Outorou's secret, that's locked by five Psycho Locks. You don't have enough
evidence yet, so go back to the police station. Here you will find Saburou
Niboshi. He will be the witness tomorrow in court. He can't tell you what
he saw. About Yurie's suicide, Niboshi heard some rumors about that. He
believes there was something bad written on those notes she left behind.
Yurie consulted someone before her death, and she talked about a bad man.
You mean Isao? That's Saburou's only guess. Go back to the detainment cell
and talk to Kirio. About Yurie Amano, Kirio heard rumors of the notes Yurie
left behind. Kirio did approach Isao. She wanted to get those notes and



burn them before they could reach the public eye.

She didn't want the world's eye to see those, but she wouldn't kill for those.
As for the reason for pinning the crime on Outorou, all she says is revenge
and a single Psycho Lock. There is not enough evidence, so go back to your
office. Your cell phone rings. Itonoko has some important news for you.

He is already here. TItonoko found out who put that camera in the bear. He
traced the bear's route, like Mitsurugi suggested. Shingo Outorou was the one
who bought it. Itonoko shows you the department store credit card receipt.
The bear cost 380,000 yen. The price match with the one Outorou bought. The
store clerk even said Outorou bought that bear. Take that as evidence, then
ask about the camera. Itonoko says it could have been bought anywhere, so he
gives it back to you. With this evidence, it time to tackle Outorou's Psycho
Lock.

Outorou says he never had Isao in his sights. Show him the peeping camera.

He asks where that camera was found. Show him the doll of the bear. One
unlocked. He says a fan must have sent that, but you show him the profile of
Shingo Outorou himself. You have proof it was him. Show him the Credit Card
Sales Slip. The sales clerk can confirm Outorou bought that bear. The second
one unlocked. You know the reason for his spying in Isao's room. Show him
Kirio Kamiya's profile. He says if there was a scandal, it would be better
for him. So the only other possibility is taping the murder. Show the card to
him. Outorou was taping the murderer, Sazaemon Koroshiya. Outorou shakes in
excitement. The reason he knows who Koroshiya is because Outorou is
Koroshiya's client! The real criminal of this case is Shingo Outorou, your
very client. The last Psycho Lock breaks and Outorou shows his true form.

Under that hair that was blocking the right eye, you see scar marks. He
admits to hiring the hit man Sazaemon Koroshiya to do the killing. Outorou
doesn't trust Koroshiya. Outorou has the videotape of Koroshiya's killing.
With that, he can threaten Koroshiya if need be. That videotape is Outorou's
insurance. Outorou had a clean image, so a scandal would be troublesome. He
didn't actually kill someone, but he did request a hit man to do it. Outorou
is still guilty. However, if you don't get a not guilty verdict by tomorrow,
Mayoi's life is in danger. What are you going to do? Mitsurugi appears and
says now you have finally reached the case's start line. He will continue
the conversation at the police office.

It's up to you what to do. One year ago, Mitsurugi himself didn't know what a
prosecutor was. That's why he left the prosecutor's office, in search of a
new answer. Until the righteous answer was found, he couldn't stand in the
courtroom. Now it's your turn. What can you do as a lawyer? That's the
answer you have to find by yourself. Up until now you trusted you client's
innocence. However, now you know Outorou is guilty. If you can save the
suffering, then that's what made you a lawyer. You want to save Mayoi, so

you must fight tomorrow. Mitsurugi tells you not to have a misunderstanding.
We are not heroes. We're humans. Save someone? That's not a easy thing to
do. You are a lawyer, you can't escape from that fact. You must fight.

Mitsurugi mentions that you and Mei Karuma used all your powers to defeat
Mitsurugi himself. Even if at the end, you reached the vague truth.
Mitsurugi can't do that. A clearly guilty person getting free on a false
decision. Mei is fighting for herself, a perfect victory. That's the old
Mitsurugi too. But now he has realized that a perfect victory has no
meaning. You are going to have to find the answer yourself before tomorrow's
court. If you don't, then the ending won't change. The kidnapper calls you.
You ask why he kidnapped Mayoi. For the benefit of Outorou? He says it is
the after care. To make sure his clients are not suspects in a murder case.
That's the trust he builds with his clients. That's the Koroshiya's code of



ethics. His client got arrested, so that's why he hired you. The kidnapper
reveals himself as Sazaemon Koroshiya. He reminds you if you fail tomorrow,
you know what's going to happen. He tries to cut off communication before
the call can be traced.

After that, you hear a cat's meow. It's the cat in Outorou's mansion! The
butler you saw there was Sazaemon Koroshiya. That pet door you saw was the
same one Mayoi saw. Mayoi is being held in Outorou's mansion! You
immediately call the police officers to investigate that place. You meet
Mitsurugi at the mansion. Nobody is there. Search the door area to find a
small doll of a bear. Take that accessory as evidence. Mitsurugi asks for
your help in breaking down the locked door. Inside, it looks to be Outorou's
private room. There's a electro-magnetic wave receiver in the antenna.
There's also a video deck for recording. The deck is empty, though. Go to
the wine cellar to find it empty. Mitsurugi has ordered the blockade of exits
out of town.

Search the bottom of the stairs to find a picture. 1It's a portrait of Yurie.
Why is her picture here? Take that as evidence. 1Is your head spinning now,
with all this evidence? On the back of the picture, Mayoi was written
something there. A letter from her. She's glad you came. Mayoi says you
should do everything you can to make Outorou guilty. She won't allow a
hideous person like him to be free. She tells Harumi to help you out. You
are almost done with gathering evidence except for Kirio's Psycho Lock.
Mitsurugi allows you to meet her in the detainment cell. Show her Mayoi's
Jewel to begin the unlock process. There was a case that started Kirio's
revenge. Show her the suicide report. The suicide of Yurie started her
revenge. You have proof to connect Yurie with Outorou. Show her Yurie's

picture. This was found in Outorou's Mansion. Psycho Lock unlock successful.

Kirio says Yurie was supposed to marry Isao. Isao backed out of the marriage.
The reason being Shingo Outorou. Yurie used to be Outorou's manager a long
time ago. Back then, Kirio saw the two together a lot. Yurie was chosen by
Outorou, then thrown away by that same Outorou. Outorou covered up that part
as best he could. Yurie moved to the Kouei Production, where she met Isao.
Isao seemed better than Outorou. The two were about to get married, and when
Isao backed out, Yurie killed herself. This is Kirio's and Yurie's revenge.
The reason Isao backed out of the marriage is because Outorou told him that
Yurie was Outorou's ex. Isao's useless pride got hurt. Isao and Shingo were
rivals. Outorou waited until the marriage announcement, then spilled the
details of their past relationship.

Yurie did leave behind writings. It must have talked about Outorou. Isao
found the dead body of Yurie. Afterwards he hid the writings. Those writings
hold Shingo Outorou's weakness. This secret could damage the image of the
“fresh as a spring breeze' Outorou. Isao planned revenge. He was going to
present those writings at the press conference, wearing the Tonosaman' suit.
Isao was waiting for the best timing, after Outorou won the Hero of Heroes
award. Kirio knew about this plan, that's why she approached Isao. When
Kirio found Isao's dead body, she knew Outorou did it. Kirio searched
frantically for those writings. Before those notes could go public, she
wanted to destroy them. She was going to burn those writings with a lighter
she prepared, but she couldn't find those notes.

Instead, she thought of revenge. She planted enough evidence to show Outorou
was guilty. When she put the knife into the corpse, she didn't feel she was
committing a crime. Kirio believes Outorou is guilty for killing both Yurie
and Isao. Kirio asks if you are still going to defend your client. You have
no choice. Afterward, you return to your office and fall asleep from
exhaustion. You see that dream again of the Judge pounding the hammer on



you. This dream foreshadows what's going to happen in court tomorrow. The
next day in the waiting room, Outorou calls you on your cell phone. He
reminds you who's life is on the line. Then Chihiro appears inside of Harumi.
She doesn't know where Mayoi is. Your phone rings again. You snap at the
caller, thinking it's Outorou again, but it was Itonoko.

You apologize for your outburst, then Itonoko says he's chasing Koroshiya.
The problem is he doesn't have a lead. If he can somehow rescue Mayoi, then
Outorou can be guilty. Itonoko asks you to stall for time along with
Mitsurugi. Court begins. Mitsurugi says Kirio Kamiya put unfavorable
evidence against Outorou. She put the Tonosaman' suit to escape the scene.
However, Kirio has nothing to do with the crime. Mitsurugi shows the card
of Sazaemon Koroshiya, the professional hit man. Isao Fujimino was murdered
by that hit man. The person who hired that hit man was Shingo Outorou.
That's what the prosecution is here to prove. Mitsurugi calls his first
witness, Saburou Niboshi.

He testifies that when he visited Shingo's room, Outorou was talking to
someone. He thought it was the hotel boy at first, but Saburou had company
to attend to, so he couldn't stay long to watch. Shake him twice on each
statement to get him to say Outorou gave the boy some chips. He reveals
after more probing that it looked more like banknotes. Mitsurugi says that's
a commission fee for killing Isao Fujimino. So that Boy the witness saw was
the hit man. The proof is the card left behind at the crime scene. Now
Saburou testifies about the second time he saw that boy. When he saw the

boy leave the victim's room, he didn't have anything. No wagon, no tray.
Saburou thought that was strange.

You disagree, making him revise his testimony. Show him the crime scene
photo. The tray with the tomato juice is shown in the pictures. A boy
without a tray is not suspicious if he left the tray there. Mitsurugi smiles
and asks the witness about the boy's hands. Saburou says the boy wore gloves.
Dark black leather gloves. Normal boys wouldn't wear such gloves. Mitsurugi
asks for the witness to continue on. It's about the second time the boy and
defendant met. The boy knocked on Outorou's door and gave something to the
occupant. Shake him to find out it was a small item. Shake him again in the
same place to find out he couldn't see the face of the occupant, only the
arms. Saburou adds if he saw that thing again, he would know. It looked like
a wooden ornament.

Show him the accessory. That's the bear shaped figure found in Outorou's
Mansion. Saburou says that's the one he saw the boy hand over to the person
in Outorou's waiting room. Mitsurugi says Koroshiya killed Isao, took the
wooden bear, and gave it to Outorou, the requester! This makes it unfavorable
for you, but Chihiro says if you didn't present the bear, Mitsurugi would have
anyways. The Judge sees no reason to continue trial, but you say the
suspicious part is the bear. When Outorou was arrested, he never returned to
his mansion. How could the bear move from the hotel to his house? Objection
raised by Mitsurugi. He remembers what you muttered at the mansion. The
butler was Koroshiya. He was inside Outorou's mansion, so Koroshiya brought

the bear accessory back himself.

The other part that's suspicious is the person who took the bear. Saburou
only saw the arm, but it was the arm of the Tonosaman'. The Judge says that's
enough. The person who requested the murder of Isao is Shingo Outorou. You
can't beat the truth. Still you throw an objection. This is to stall for
time, a real sinful method. You say it could have been set up by someone
else. Who? You point to Kirio Kamiya. She could have been the one to take
that wooden doll, since she did wear the second Tonosaman' suit. The bear was
also planted by her. Mitsurugi says that is a possibility, but the crowd is



grumbling. To save Mayoi, you don't care if the world is your enemy, you must
keep on fighting. The prosecution accepts the lawyer challenge.

If you knew the reason the real killer wanted that bear, everything will
become clear to you. Who the real criminal is, that is. Mitsurugi calls
Kirio Kamiya as a witness to clear her name. The Judge orders a ten minute
break. In the waiting room Outorou is counting on you. You have to restrain
yourself. Chihiro disappears and it's back to Harumi. Your cell phone rings.
Itonoko checks in with your status. You manage to extend the trial just
barely. Itonoko still doesn't have a lead on Mayoi's whereabouts. If he had
just one clue. Chihiro shouts out “tent'! A circus tent. Chihiro says Mayoi
was put to sleep. Mayoi summoned Chihiro. Mayoi is inside some small room.
From the window, she saw a circus tent from about 100 meters away.

You relay the information to Itonoko over the phone. He says the only circus
in town is the Tachimi Circus, from the third episode. Itonoko rushes to
circle the map. Chihiro says she saw a post under the window. That's the
hint Itonoko needed. The window is on the third floor of some old office
building. Itonoko tells you to hang in there. He tells you to keep the
phone on standby. Break time is over, court is about to begin. Kirio takes
the stand once more. She knows what the wooden bear is. She testifies that
the bear is an exquisite puzzle. If you fiddle with the parts in the correct
sequence, you can take it apart. Inside is a hollow cavity. It's a place
small objects can fit inside. The design is elaborate, so you couldn't open

it unless you knew the order.

Just by the looks, you can't tell a small item can fit inside. Shake her to
find out only she and Isao knew how to open the puzzle. Mitsurugi says the
point of that testimony was to establish that a small item can fit inside that
bear. The next step is, what is actually inside that bear? Mitsurugi tells
Kirio to open it up. She does so. Then contents of the bear is a memo. You
start to realize what it is. It's the writings left behind by Yurie Amano
just before her suicide. These notes were hidden inside the bear. Isao found
the body and the notes. Even the note is signed Yurie Amano. Kirio knew
about it. She heard it from the victim. When she saw the corpse of Isao, she
looked for that accessory. She wanted to destroy those notes before they were
publicized.

She never found the bear. It was already taken away by Koroshiya. Chihiro
comments that the trial is moving completely at the Prosecution's pace. The
next step would be, what is written on the notes? Mitsurugi asks the Judge to
read the notes to the public. It explains how Outorou used Yurie, then how he
threw her away. When she was about to get married, Outorou interfered again.
In desperation, she chose death. Mitsurugi says the prosecution doesn't plan
to attack the character of the defendant, but it does provide motive for
killing. The night of the murder, Isao planned to reveal this note to the
public, right after the defendant won his award. Outorou had to protect his
clean image. That's why he had to stop that note from going public using any
means possible.

The crowd starts talking amongst themselves. There's a lawyer still defending
that trash? Mitsurugi says the person who requested the services of the hit
man was looking for those notes. The defendant was the one who needed those
notes. Those notes were found in the defendant's mansion. You think that
either the accessory or the note is your way out. The defendant couldn't have
known the contents of the accessory and couldn't have known the content of the
notes. Mitsurugi has another answer prepared. He says you wishing for even
more desperation. He shows you a mini spy camera. It's capable of recording
video. It's function is suited for spying. That's strange. You have that
camera. Why does Mitsurugi have one too?



Mitsurugi says Outorou and Isao were rivals. This camera was used to catch
the weakness of the opponent. Outorou was watching the private life of Isao.
Mitsurugi says the camera he is holding is a different one than the one in
Isao's room. This camera was found in Isao's own house. This camera also has
Outorou's fingerprints on it. You start to see your slim hopes fading away.
Using this and other spy cameras, Outorou knew about the writings of Yurie.
The crowd is getting restless. They can't believe you still think the
defendant Shingo Outorou is not guilty. Chihiro tells you that Mitsurugi
missed one thing. The one piece of evidence he didn't examine carefully. You
throw out a soft objection. Mitsurugi says your voice is too soft and he
can't hear you.

Redo it one more time then show him Yurie's writings. The handwriting on
those haven't been examined yet. Kirio can't believe you think the

writings are forged. It could have been forged by Kirio, since she did know
how to open that bear. The Judge thinks about extending court for another
day, but you don't have that kind of time. The crowd protests. Outorou is
guilty, guilty, guilty, guilty, guilty, guilty! Your phone rings. Itonoko
reports that the kidnapper escaped again. Itonoko found the hideout of
Koroshiya, but no one was inside. Itonoko wonders if you've reached the
limit. In the background, Itonoko can hear the chants of guilty. Itonoko
tells you to switch over to Mitsurugi.

You toss the phone to the prosecutor. Itonoko pleas for a little more time.
Mitsurugi says they are in the middle of court and hangs up the phone. The
Judge has to extend the court one more day. Objection! Who said that? It's
none other than Mitsurugi himself. He asks for 30 minutes. That should be
enough time to examine the handwriting on those papers. The Judge grants the
wish. The Judge also warns you no more breaks after this one. Back in the

waiting room, Mitsurugi asks the status of Mayoi. It looks like they
disappeared again. The phone rings. Itonoko says Koroshiya had a close
encounter with the police. Koroshiya left behind some evidence. Itonoko

will take those lost articles and make his way over to the courtroom.

He could make it there in 20 minutes. You hear a crash. Apparently, Itonoko
just got into a car accident by speeding. What are you going to do now? If
you don't hurry, the police will confiscate those lost articles. There is a
way to know Itonoko's current location. Show Mitsurugi the profile of Mei
Karuma. She had a transmitter planted on Itonoko. She has a receiver, so
she knows where Itonoko is. The problem is, would she help you? Wait and
see on that one. You talk with Mitsurugi. You admit your client is guilty.
What you are doing is pinning the crime on a innocent witness. The Lawyer
Ryuuichi Naruhodou should die. Mitsurugi doesn't want to hear your good for
nothing cries. 1Is your defense right or wrong? You'll know when the
verdict is announced.

Court resumes. Mitsurugi announces the results of the handwriting analysis.
He says it's regrettable, but the writings are forged. Those writing were
written by the victim, Isao Fujimino. However, even if these writings are
fake, Shingo Outorou wouldn't have known that. Outorou would think those
were real and attempt to get them. You say Outorou would know. Show him
the peeping camera. If the defendant knew those writings were fake, the
motive for killing would disappear. Mitsurugi says Outorou couldn't watch
24 hours a day. The victim could have written those in a place wouldn't
know about. You ask to prove when it was written. Mitsurugi doesn't have an
answer. He has to resort to a new angle to attack on. Mitsurugi wants to
call another witness, but it is a special witness.

A perfect witness that can say who requested Koroshiya's services. Who? The



person himself, Sazaemon Koroshiya! Mitsurugi asks for a special circumstance
for this witness. The lawyer side allows it. A transceiver sits on the
witness stand. Koroshiya takes the stand in the form of long distance
communication by wireless radio. Sazaemon agreed to testify only on the
condition that the call won't be traced. Mitsurugi promises not to trace the
call. The Judge asks for proof it really is Koroshiya. He puts Mayoi on the
phone. Mayoi is crying due to starvation. You have no objections, the person
is Koroshiya. Mitsurugi wants to hear the testimony of the name of the person
that requested the killing of Isao.

Koroshiya says the most important part is building trust with this clients.
As a hit man, he uses polite language, which is most disturbing. This is the
first time his client became a suspect in a murder case. No one has betrayed
Koroshiya yet. If his client betrays him, the client is dead. He says his
client pinned the crime on someone else. People who don't know the meaning
of moral code can't be trusted. Koroshiya says Kirio Kamiya was the one who
requested the murder of Isao Fujimino. Mitsurugi throws an objection.
Mitsurugi says on the phone earlier, he said something else. At this rate
you could win with a not guilty verdict for Outorou. However, you know
Koroshiya is lying. Kirio says it's not her. Now you will have to choose
between getting the not guilty to save Mayoi, or wait for the lost articles to

arrive.

You realize Mitsurugi had many chance to win, but he didn't take them. You
trust Mitsurugi, so you decide to question the testimony of Koroshiya. Even
though the hit man's testimony gives you the advantage, you rather find out
the truth. That's the lawyer's obligation. Mitsurugi wants to hear the
testimony of what the witness knows about his client. On the part where
Koroshiya says Kirio knew about the death of Isao beforehand, show him the
glass. She thought the victim fainted. TIf that was planned, why would she
leave fingerprints on the glass? If Kirio didn't know about the victim's
death, then Kirio was not Koroshiya's client. You better object before

Koroshiya suspect something. You do so, but the Judge is kind of puzzled.

Mitsurugi wants to know more about the time Koroshiya took the request. He
says he took the request about a week ago. He met the client at some bar to
consult with. Shake him to get him to hesitate. He says he takes requests
by face to face meeting, and not by letters or telephone. Is this important?
No it isn't, but the important part is did he really meet the client?
Koroshiya revises his statement and says "this client is trustworthy.

That's what I thought when I saw him.' Show him the profile of Kirio Kamiya.
If Koroshiya really did meet Kirio, wouldn't that be a her, not a him? Kirio
could be either male or female. Koroshiya's client was not Kirio. Koroshiya
testifies once more. You find out he took the request by letter. Lately he
has opened his business to electronic mail.

Shake him to find the small other thing he did. You'll decide if it is
relevant to the case. The other thing he mentions is the bear accessory.

He says he gave that bear to his client. Show that accessory to the witness.
Kirio wanted the notes inside. If the witness really did give the bear to
Kirio, she would have taken those notes out! This means the real requester
did not know how to open the puzzle. The requestor was not Kirio. Koroshiya
warns you he doesn't like traitors. Koroshiya says to end the trial now.
Mitsurugi says he has no more questions. The Judge is puzzled. If the
prosecution rests now, Mitsurugi would lose. If court ends now, Outorou would
be not guilty and Kirio would be guilty. Outorou's verdict is...

Before you can answer, Mei Karuma appears and hands over the lost articles
that were found by Itonoko. She reports that Itonoko's injuries are minor.
She brought the evidence wrapped in Itonoko's coat. The evidence is the items



Koroshiya left behind. There are three pieces. The first piece is a pistol.
No tests have been done on it yet. It probably was the pistol used to shoot
Mei. The second piece of evidence is a videotape. The contents are unknown.
Koroshiya injured three police officers fighting to get that tape back. The
last piece of evidence is a boy's uniform. This was worn during the crime.
There were black gloves in the pocket. Also there is one button missing from
that uniform.

The Judge says the important part is, who is the client of Koroshiya? ©None of
these pieces tell the story. Chihiro tells you there's two ways to get
through this situation. One way is to make Outorou want a guilty verdict deep
from the heart. If Outorou wants the guilty verdict, then the hostage would
be free. The second way is to make Koroshiya end his contract with Outorou.
If Outorou is no longer his client, Mayoi would be free. However, the Judge
won't take any more evidence. Chihiro says, who is the one who needs the
evidence? The lawyer, prosecutor, and Judge have seen the evidence. Who
hasn't had a chance to see the evidence? You should know the answer by now.
The Judge gives you one chance. Here's where the ending splits. If you
choose the wrong combination of evidence and person, then the bad ending

occurs.

The bad ending is where Outorou is not guilty. Naruhodou dons a coat and
leaves town without hearing a word from Mayoi. Koroshiya probably released
her as promised, but she probably doesn't want to see you. A few days later,
you hear the news about how Kirio was guilty of the murder. A miracle didn't
happen. To get the bad ending, show a combination of anything but Sazaemon
Koroshiya and the Videotape. To get the good ending, show that combination of
Sazaemon Koroshiya and the Videotape. Koroshiya's client warned of him not

to play that tape. Koroshiya doesn't know the contents of that tape. You
tell him that the tape has Koroshiya himself recorded on there. The scene of
the crime had a hidden camera inside the big bear. Koroshiya's crime is
recorded on tape. He asks, who's camera is that? Koroshiya's client. The
client requested a certain time for the murder, the reason being so the client
can record the murder on tape.

Koroshiya didn't know about the hidden camera. Why did Koroshiya's client do
that? The answer is to seize the weakness of Koroshiya! The hit man's client
didn't trust anyone. The tape could be used to threaten the hit man.

Sazaemon Koroshiya feels betrayed. If the his client betrays him, then what
would happen? Koroshiya says he will terminate the contract with his client
at that same moment. The client will then become the next target for
Koroshiya to kill. This is the only way you can pull off this great reversal.
Koroshiya ends the contract with his client, Shingo Outorou. He's got a new
job to do. Hunt down Outorou. Koroshiya agrees to return Mayoi to you.
Outorou is sweating now. Even if Outorou gets the not guilty verdict, a pro
hit man will appear in front of him in the near future. He should know how
swift and deadly the hit man is. It's your choice now, but even if you pick
not guilty, Outorou will break down and plead for a guilty verdict. Shingo
Outorou's verdict: Guilty.

Afterwards, Outorou is being escorted out by Mei Karuma. Outorou is getting
the full course whip treatment by now. As for Kirio, she finally breaks her
dependence on someone. When she was alone in that detainment cell, that's
when she was able to look at herself subjectively. She smiles for the first
time. She's glad you and Mitsurugi were the ones in charge of this case.
Back in the waiting room, Chihiro congratulates you. In the end, you found
out that for a lawyer, something else is more important than a not guilty
verdict. Mitsurugi informs you that Mayoi has been delivered to the police
office safely. Mayoi is on the way here. Mei Karuma appears. She wonders
why you are all smiles. You lost the case! Your undefeated record is now



history. Why are you so happy?

Karuma wouldn't understand. Mitsurugi agrees. A year ago, Mitsurugi was the
same way. Mitsurugi used all possible means to get a guilty verdict back
then. However, the lawyer known as Ryuuichi Naruhodou stood in his way.
Mitsurugi experienced his first loss. He felt empty. Then Mitsurugi took the
defendant's chair on a certain case, the Christmas Eve Case and the DL#6

Case from a year ago. Mitsurugi was saved by his enemy after that shocking
case. Mitsurugi couldn't forgive himself. That's why he left the prosecution
office. The Prosecutor Reiji Mitsurugi chooses death. However it really
wasn't like that. By stepping away from the prosecution bureau, he discovered
that the moment he lost, that was the beginning of everything.

We attack the defendant with any means. No matter how desperate the
situation, someone didn't give up. A tenacious man who kept fighting. That's
you, as Ryuuichi Naruhodou. That's when Mitsurugi trusted you. Mei doesn't
understand, why would trust your opponent? No matter what dirty tricks are
used, the truth will show it's face. All we can do is fight with all our
strength. All the mysteries disappear one by one. In the end, the truth is
revealed. The one and only truth. That's the reason for the existence of
lawyer and prosecutors. Mei says that's worthless, she doesn't want to hear
the speech of a loser. She says Mitsurugi is no longer a part of the Karuma
family. Mei throws you something and leaves. She throws her wave receiver
and whip away.

Mayoi arrives on the scene. She heard what happened in court today. Mayoi
admits that if she did die, she would have possessed Harumi to spook you.
Since Mayoi is starving, let's eat! Not the usual Ramen shop, but this time
the group goes to the Bandou Hotel. At the hotel, you meet Itonoko. He has a
bandage wrapped around his head, and he is not wearing his coat. Itonoko just
crashed into a electric pole, not the accident you were expecting. Natsumi
then greets you along with Saburou. When Mitsurugi mentions the three lost
articles Itonoko obtained, Itonoko pauses and says there really were four
pieces of evidence. It was in his coat pocket. The case is over, but it does
leave you wondering what that was. Mayoi mentions that in the two days she
was held up, she drew a picture. She lost that picture though.

Mitsurugi's receiver goes off. It's ringing even though Itonoko is still
here. Mitsurugi has an idea and he leaves the party. Mayoi tells him to
stay, but Mitsurugi says he has business left over to deal with. Before he
leaves, you give him Mei's whip. You have an idea where Mitsurugi is going.
Afterwards, it looks like you will have to pay for this big meal. You shout
out a loud Objection! In the end, Itonoko gets his old job back, Mako Suzuki
turns a new leaf and becomes a waitress at a restaurant. Max and the circus
crew plan to invade America. The old woman continues her machine gun talk.
Sazaemon Koroshiya plans to hide out in another country. If you have a murder
request, do so at his home page!

The scene shifts to an airport. At gate 12, Mitsurugi catches Mei Karuma
before she boards the plane. He used the receiver to track down Mei. The
transmitter was in Itonoko's coat, which is now in Mei's possession. Mei
hears about the fourth article left behind by Koroshiya. She doesn't care
about it, since the case is over. Mitsurugi asks if Mei is running away. Mei
admits she is not a genius, unlike her father. Mei says she threw away her
whip. She is no longer a prosecutor. Mitsurugi invites her back to the
prosecution role. They won't fight for honor. Think about what that whip is
needed for. Mei says Mitsurugi hasn't changed. He always left her behind to
move forward. That's why she hated Mitsurugi.

A chance for revenge came. If she could have beaten Ryuuichi Naruhodou, she



would have surpassed Mitsurugi. That was her revenge. Mitsurugi reminds her
that she depended on her father, Gou Karuma. Mitsurugi says he will continue
his path. If Mei won't come along, this is where they part. Then you see Mei
Karuma crying. Afterwards, you hear Mei vowing that she will eventually see
Ryuuichi Naruhodou in court. Until then, the last piece of evidence that
didn't make it is hers to keep. She will return that piece the next meeting.
The fourth article left behind was Koroshiya's Card with Mayoi's scribble on
it. Mayoili made a face of Ryuuichi Naruhodou using the shell on that card.
Conclusion: The real killer is Sazaemon Koroshiya. The person who requested
the murder is Shingo Outorou, your client. Ryuuichi Naruhodou's courtroom
win-loss record: 7-1.

Episode 5

Are you high? There is no Episode 5!
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